Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you'll enjoy
the following benefits:

- Efficient, integrated PDF viewing
- Easy printing

« Quick searches

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8,
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.



http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


FOUNDED
MAY 15, 1821

£ L P
i

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer

*

STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk

*

MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214

*

MEETING TIMES
2" and 4" Thursday each month at 7:00 pm

*

COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex
Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: (770) 305-5200
Fax: (770) 305-5210

*

WEB SITE
www.fayettecountyga.gov

*

E-MAIL
administration@fayettecountyga.gov

The Agenda

Board of Commissioners
August 28, 2008
7:00 P.M.

Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.
Acceptance of Agenda.

PUBLIC HEARING:

A. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Development
Regulations regarding the revised Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning
District's (MNGWPD) model Floodplain Management Ordinance to replace the
existing Article IV Floodplain Regulations in its entirety as presented by the
Engineering Department. THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED
APPROVAL .

PUBLIC COMMENT:

CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Approval of Resolution No. 2008-12 establishing millage rates and levying ad
valorem taxes for 2008.

2. Authorization to amend Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County
Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigation Division to recognize funds paid to the
County as reimbursement for personnel assigned to assist federal officers in
investigating certain illegal activities.

3. Approval to allow the Sheriff's Department Jail Division to dispose of items of
clothing and bedding from the Jail which are no longer serviceable.

4, Approval of staff's recommendation to accept the proposal from WRS as the
lowest bidder for actuarial and consulting services for the valuation of OPEB
as required by GASB 45.

5. Approval of request from the City of Fayetteville that the County assist them
in conducting a referendum on November 4 by placing the question of Sunday
Sales of Alcoholic Beverages by the drink on ballots for voters residing in
Fayetteville.

6. Approval of staff's recommendation to amend the County’s Cafeteria Benefit
Plan to include the County’s Flexible Spending Account and to authorize the
Chairman to execute the related documents.

NEW BUSINESS:
B. Discussion of Vehicle Replacement Committee’s recommendations for
replacement of 19 vehicles included in the Fiscal Year 2009 budget.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS

BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov

http://www.fayettecountyga.gov

mailto:administration@fayettecountyga.gov




Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS Department Head: ’Carol Chandler

Presenter, if needed: ’Same, if needed Preferred Meeting Date: ’Thursday, August 28, 2008

Wording for the Agenda:
Approval of request from the City of Fayetteville that the County assist them in conducting a referendum on November 4 by placing
the question of Sunday Sales of Alcoholic Beverages by the drink on ballots for voters residing in Fayetteville.

Background/History/Details:

The City of Fayetteville desires to hold a referendum to determine voters' wishes as to whether or not establishments inside the City
should be allowed to serve liquor by the drink on Sundays. They can accomplish this by adding the question to the November 4

General Election ballots for voters living inside the City.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approve request from City of Fayetteville to allow them to add a question to the November General Election ballot for city voters as
to whether or not the Sunday sale of alcohol by the drink should be allowed.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? [No If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal?

“ =<
]
wv

Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes

Staff Notes

Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date [Thursday, August 28, 2008
Recognition/ Public old New
Presentation Hearing C Business C Business (@ Consent ( Report ( Other





City of Fayetteville

240 Glynn Street South ¢ Fayetteville, Georgia 30214
Telephone: (770) 461-6029 ¢ Facsimile (770) 460-4238

MAYOR
Kenneth Steele

COUNCIL

Larry Dell

Al Hovey-King

Paul Oddo

Wilson Price July 18, 2008

Walt White

CITY MANAGER
Joe Morton Mr. Jack Smith, Chairman

CITY CLERK Fayette County Commission
Judy Stephens 140 Stonewall Ave. West
Fayetteville, Ga. 30214

Dear Jack,

The Mayor and Council of the City of Fayetteville would like to request that the
Fayette County Board of Elections conduct a referendum November 4, 2008 for
the City by placing the question of Sunday Sales of Alcoholic Beverages by the
drink on all City of Fayetteville Voters ballots.

The City will be responsible for all cost associated with this referendum. Judy
Stephens, City Clerk will assist your staff in any way needed.

Your prompt response would be greatly appreciated.

Singerely,

oA :
n Steele, Mayor

City of Fayetteville





		CommissionersFayettevilleElectionAgendaRequestFile

		CommissionersFayettevilleElectionsBackup




Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Engineering/Puinc Works Department Head: ’Phil Mallon

Presenter, if needed: ’Phil Mallon/Vanessa Birrell Preferred Meeting Date: ’Thursday, August 28, 2008

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Development Regulations regarding the revised Metropolitan North
Georgia Water Planning District's (MNGWPD) model Floodplain Management Ordinance to replace the existing Article IV. Floodplain
Regulations in its entirety as presented by the Engineering Department.

Background/History/Details:

The MNGWPD requires local governments to manage floodplain using expected future land-use conditions. The model ordinance
provided by the MNGWPD has been reviewed and modified by county staff since the project was first presented to the Board in
August 2007. Input from the Planning Commission, local developers and design professionals was incorporated into the revised
document.

The proposed ordinance requires the County to determine future floodplain. Money for this effort has been allocated as a Capital
Improvement Project (CIP). Engineering is currently working on a request for proposal (RFP) and plans to make a recommendation
to the Board in August.

The Planning Commission has heard this issue and recommends approval.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Final Vote to approve proposed amendments and to authorize the Chairman to execute Ordinance 2008-07.

The P.C. recommended APPROVAL 4-0.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

N/A

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when? |Wednesday, July 2, 2008

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal? Yes

Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes

Staff Notes

Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date [Thursday, August 28, 2008
Recognition/ Public old New

Presentation 0 Hearing Business C Business ( Consent ( Report ( Other





Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 2, 2008

Page 2

Consideration of the revised Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District's (MNGWPD) model
Floodplain Management Ordinance to replace the existing Article IV Floodplain Regulations of the
Fayette County Development Regulations. This item was last discussed during the Workshop Meeting
held on August 1, 2007.

Environmental Engineer Vanessa Birrell of he Engineering Departmen! stated the revised Metropolitan North
Georgia Water Planning Districts’ model Fioodplain Management Ordinance is the last model ordinance that
Fayette County is required lo adopt. Discussion followed regarding the effect of the model ordinance on
Fayette County and its citizens, a new floodplain analysis and how to recover its cost, and the efforl belween
the County and FEMA 1o correct some of the inaccurate data currently being utilized by FEMA. Chairman
Smith stated this item was an ordinance change so it required two public hearings. He said the first public
hearing could be held by the Planning Commission and the second hearing would be held by the Board. Itwas
the consensus of the Board to authorize staff to forward the revised Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning
District's mode! Floodplain Management Ordinance to the Planning Commission. A copy of the request,
identified as "Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof,





FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT/FLOOB-DAMAGEPREVENTION ORDINANCE
Peseription:- Overview — not to be included with ordinance

The purpose of this ordinance is to completely replace existing Article IV, Floodplain
Regulations of Fayette County’s Development Regulations.

Floodplain management involves the designation of flood-prone areas and the managing of their
uses. Itisalso aimed at minimizing modifications to streams, reducing flood hazards, and protecting
the beneficial uses of the floodplain such as water quality protection. As such, floodplain
management can be seen as a subset of the larger consideration of surface water and stormwater
management.

Floodplain regulations and development restrictions can greatly reduce future flooding impacts,
preserve greenspace and habitat, and protect their function in safely conveying floodwaters and
protecting water quality. This model ordinance aims to help communities integrate floodplain
management with stormwater management during the land development process.

The ordinance requires that a local government regulate the floodplains that will be expected with
future land-use conditions, which are based upon the communities adopted future land use map,
zoning, or watershed study projections. The ordinance also requires the local government to regulate
floodplains on all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres and greater.

In order to administer the ordinance, “future-conditions” floodplains must be established:

e Future-conditions floodplains for streams with a drainage area of one square mile (640
acres) and greater in size are to be delineated by the local jurisdiction. As required in the
District-wide Watershed Management Plan, cities and counties are expected to model and
map at least 10% of their area each year until future-conditions floodplains have been
established for the entire community.

o For streams with a drainage area between 100 acres and 640 acres, the local jurisdiction
shall model and map the future-conditions floodplains -or- require the future-conditions
floodplains be determined on a per development basis by the applicant.

o For development projects in watersheds of any size where future-conditions floodplains
have not yet been established, the applicant will be required to determine the future-
conditions floodplain boundaries located on their property.





08/01/07 — Instructed by BOC to review Ordinance
08/16/07 — PC Wkshop

02/21/08 — PC Wkshop

07/02/08 — BOC Wkshop

08/07/08 — PC Public Hearing

08/28/08 — BOC Public Hearing

Article IV: Floodplain Management

Table of Contents

Section 1 General Provisions

Section 2 Definitions

Section 3 Permit Procedures and Requirements
Section 4 Standards for Development

Section 5 Provisions for Flood Hazard Reduction
Section 6 Variance Procedures

Section 7 Violations, Enforcement and Penalties
Introduction

It is hereby determined that:

The flood hazard areas of Fayette County are subject to periodic inundation which may result in loss
of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services,
extraordinary public expenditures for flood relief and protection, and impairment of the tax base, all
of which adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare.

Flood hazard areas can serve important stormwater management, water quality, stream bank
protection, stream corridor protection, wetland preservation and ecological purposes when
permanently protected as undisturbed or minimally disturbed areas.

Effective floodplain management and flood hazard protection activities can (1) Protect human life
and health; (2) Minimize damage to private property; (3) Minimize damage to public facilities and
infrastructure such as water and gas mains, electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets and bridges
located in floodplains; and (4) Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control
projects associated with flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general public.

Article IX, Section II of the Constitution of the State of Georgia and Section 36-1-20(a) of the
Official Code of Georgia Annotated have delegated the responsibility to local governmental units to
adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of'its citizenry.
Therefore, Fayette County, Georgia, does ordain this ordinance and establishes this set of floodplain
management and flood hazard reduction policies for the purpose of regulating the use of flood hazard
areas. It is determined that the regulation of flood hazard areas and the prevention of flood damage





are in the public interest and will minimize threats to public health and safety, as well as to private
and public property.

Section 1. General Provisions
1.1.  Purpose and Intent

The purpose of this ordinance is to protect, maintain and enhance the public health, safety,
environment and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions
in flood hazard areas, as well as to protect the beneficial uses of floodplain areas for water quality
protection, stream bank and stream corridor protection, wetlands preservation and ecological and
environmental protection by provisions designed to:

(1) Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve such uses, be
protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;

(2) Restrict or prohibit uses which are dangerous to health, safety and property due to flooding or
erosion hazards, or which increase flood heights, velocities, or erosion;

(3) Control filling, grading, dredging and other development which may increase flood damage
or erosion;

(4) Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert flood
waters or which may increase flood hazards to other lands;

(5) Limit the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers
which are involved in the accommodation of flood waters; and,

(6) Protect the stormwater management, water quality, stream bank protection, stream corridor
protection, wetland preservation and ecological functions of natural floodplain areas.

1.2.  Applicability

This ordinance shall be applicable to all areas of Areas of Special Flood Hazard within Fayette
County and all areas “adjacent” to an Area of special Flood Hazard, as defined herein.

A property shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this ordinance whenever a building permit,
land disturbance permit, certificate of zoning compliance, subdivision, or reconfiguration of a parcel
is required and/or approved by the county. The conditions of this ordinance shall supersede
floodplain constraints depicted on final plats, construction drawings, surveys, etc. The effective date
of this ordinance is October 1, 2008.





1.3,

Designation of Ordinance Administrator

The County Engineer is hereby appointed to administer and implement the provisions of this
ordinance.

1.4.

Basis for Area of Special Flood Hazard — Flood Area Maps and Studies

For the purposes of this ordinance, the following are adopted by reference:

(1)

@)

€)

4

1:5.

The September 26, 2008, Flood Insurance Study (FIS) on file with the Fayette County
Engineering Department with accompanying maps and other supporting data and any
revision thereto are hereby adopted by reference.

Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the base flood elevation or
delineation of the 100-year floodplain and flood-prone areas include:

(a)

(b)

Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United States Army Corps of
Engineers, the United States Geological Survey or any other local, State or Federal
agency applicable to Fayette County; or

Any base flood study authored by a registered professional engineer in the State of
Georgia which has been prepared by FEMA approved methodology and approved by
the Fayette County Engineering Department.

Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the future-conditions flood
elevation or delineation of the future-conditions floodplain and flood-prone areas include:

(a)

(b)

Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United States Army Corps of
Engineers, the United States Geological Survey, or any other local, State or Federal
agency applicable to Fayette County; or

Any future-conditions flood study that is: 1) authored by a registered professional
engineer in the State of Georgia; 2) prepared using FEMA approved methodology;
and 3) approved by the Fayette County Engineering Department.

The repository for public inspection of the FIS, accompanying maps and other supporting
data is located at the Fayette County Engineering Department.

Compatibility with Other Regulations

This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal any other ordinance, rule, regulation, statute,
easement, covenant, deed restriction or other provision of law. The requirements of this ordinance
are in addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law,
and where any provision of this ordinance imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any





other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, whichever provision is more restrictive or
impose higher protective standards for human health or the environment shall control.

1.6.  Severability

If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this ordinance shall
be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not affect or invalidate
the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this ordinance.

1.7. Warning and Disclaimer of Liability

The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance is considered reasonable for regulatory
purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will occur;
flood heights may be increased by manmade or natural causes. This ordinance does not imply that
land outside the Areas of Special Flood Hazard or uses permitted within such areas will be free from
flooding or flood damages. This ordinance shall not create liability on the part of Fayette County or
by any officer or employee thereof for any flood damages that result from reliance on this ordinance
or any administrative decision lawfully made there under.

Section 2. Definitions

""Addition (to an existing building)" means any walled and roofed expansion to the perimeter of a
building in which the addition is connected by a common load-bearing wall other than a fire wall.
Any walled and roofed addition which is connected by a fire wall or is separated by an independent
perimeter load-bearing wall shall be considered New Construction.

"Appeal" means a request for a review of the County Engineer's interpretation of any provision of
this ordinance.

"Area of Shallow Flooding" means a designated AO or AH Zone on a community's Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with base flood depths from one to three feet, and/or where a clearly-
defined channel does not exist, where the path of flooding is unpredictable and indeterminate, and
where velocity flow may be evident.

"Area of Special Flood Hazard" is the land subject to a one percent or greater chance of flooding
in any given year. This includes all floodplain and flood prone areas at or below the base flood
elevation (including A, A1-30, A-99, AE, AO, AH, and AR on the FHBM or the FIRM), all
floodplain and flood prone areas at or below the future-conditions flood elevation, and all other flood
prone areas as referenced in Section 1.4. For drainage areas less than 100 acres, the area of special
flood hazard shall be delineated at the discretion of the County Engineer.

"Base Flood" means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any
given year, also known as the 100-year flood.

"Base Flood Elevation' means the highest water surface elevation anticipated at any given point
during the base flood.

"Basement'" means that portion of a building having its floor subgrade (i.e., below ground level) on
more than one side.

"Building" means any structure built for support, shelter, or enclosure for any occupancy or storage.

4





“County Engineer” means the person so appointed by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners
and his/her employees designated to enforce and interpret this article. If not designated otherwise,
the County Engineer is the Director of Engineering.
"Development' means any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate including but
not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, clearing, grubbing, grading,
paving, any other installation of impervious cover, excavation or drilling operations or storage of
equipment or materials.
"Elevated Building" means a non-basement building built to have the lowest floor of the lowest
enclosed area elevated above the ground level by means of fill, solid foundation perimeter walls,
pilings, columns, piers, or shear walls adequately anchored so as not to impair the structural integrity
of the building during a base flood event.
"Existing Construction' Any structure for which the "start of construction" commenced before 23
June 1983 (this is the date of Fayette County’s original floodplain management regulation).
"Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision" means a manufactured home park or
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum the installation of utilities, the construction of
streets, and final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before 23 June 1983 (the
date of Fayette County’s original floodplain management regulation).
"Expansion to an Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision' means the preparation of
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed, including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads.
"FEMA" means the Federal Emergency Management Agency.
"Flood" or "Flooding" means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation
of normally dry land areas from:

(a) the overtlow of inland waters; or

(b) the unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.
"Flood Hazard Boundary Map" or "FHBM' means an official map of a community, issued by
the Federal Insurance Administration, where the boundaries of areas of special flood hazard have
been defined as Zone A.
"Flood Insurance Rate Map" or "FIRM" means an official map of a community, issued by the
Federal Insurance Administration, delineating the areas of special flood hazard and/or risk premium
zones applicable to the community.
"Flood Insurance Study" or "FIS" means the official report by the Federal Insurance
Administration evaluating flood hazards and containing flood profiles and water surface elevations
of the base flood.
"Floodplain" means any land area susceptible to flooding during the base flood.
"Floodproofing" means any combination of structural and non-structural additions, changes, or
adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real
property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and their contents.
"Floodway" or "Regulatory Floodway" means the channel of a stream or other watercourse and
the adjacent areas of the floodplain which is necessary to contain and discharge the base flood flow
without cumulatively increasing the base flood elevation more than one foot.
"Functionally Dependent Use' means a use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is
located or carried out in close proximity to water.





"Future-conditions Flood" means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or
exceeded in any given year based on future-conditions hydrology. Also known as the 100-year
future-conditions flood.

"Future-conditions Flood Elevation" means the flood standard equal to or higher than the Base
Flood Elevation. The Future-conditions Flood Elevation is defined as the highest water surface
anticipated at any given point during the future-conditions flood.

"Future-conditions Floodplain" means any land area susceptible to flooding by the future-
conditions flood.

"Future-conditions Hydrology" means the flood discharges associated with projected_land-use
conditions based on a community’s zoning map, comprehensive land-use plans, and/or watershed
study projections, and without consideration of projected future construction of flood detention
structures or projected future hydraulic modifications within a stream or other waterway, such as
bridge and culvert construction, fill, and excavation.

"Highest Adjacent Grade' means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface, prior to
construction, adjacent to the proposed foundation of a building.

"Historic Structure" means any structure that is;

(a) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained
by the U.S. Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of
the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National
Register;

(b) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing
to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily
determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;

(c) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places and determined as eligible
by states with historic preservation programs which have been approved by the
Secretary of the Interior; or

(d) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places and determined as eligible
by communities with historic preservation programs that have been certified either

by:
1. An approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior, or
% Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.

"Lowest Floor" means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including basement. An
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, used solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or
storage, in an area other than a basement, is not considered a building's lowest floor, provided that
such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of other provisions of this
ordinance.

"Manufactured Home" means a building, transportable in one or more sections, built on a
permanent chassis, and designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when connected
to the required utilities. The term includes any structure commonly referred to as a “mobile home”
regardless of the date of manufacture. The term also includes parked trailers, travel trailers and
similar transportable structures placed on a site for 180 consecutive days or longer and intended to be
improved property.





"Mean Sea Level" means the average height of the sea for all stages of the tide. It is used as a
reference for establishing various elevations within the floodplain. For purposes of this ordinance
the term is synonymous with National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) and/or the North American
Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988.
""National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD)" as corrected in 1929 is a vertical control used as a
reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.
"New Construction" means any structure (see definition) for which the “start of construction"
commenced after June 23, 1983, and includes any subsequent improvements to the structure.
"New Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision" means a manufactured home park or
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of
streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after June 23,
1983.
"North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988" is a vertical control used as a reference for
establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.
"Owner" means the legal or beneficial owner of a site, including but not limited to, a mortgagee or
vendee in possession, receiver, executor, trustee, lessee or other person, firm or corporation in
control of the site,
"Permit" means the Certificate of Zoning Compliance issued by Fayette County to the applicant
which is required prior to undertaking any development activity:.
"Recreational Vehicle" means a vehicle which is:

(a) built on a single chassis;

(b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;

(c) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by light duty truck; and,

(d) designed primarily for use as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping,

travel, or seasonal use and not for use as a permanent dwelling,

""Site" means the parcel of land being developed, or the portion thereof on which the development
project is located.
"Start of Construction" means the date the permit was issued, provided the actual start of
construction, repair, reconstruction, or improvement was within 180 days of the permit date. The
actual start means the first placement of permanent construction of the structure such as the pouring
of slabs or footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of
excavation, and includes the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. A minimum of
one inspection approval must be obtained as evidence that work was commenced or that work has
continued. Permanent construction does not include initial land preparation, such as clearing,
grading and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include
excavation for a basement, footings, piers or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor
does it include the installation on the property of buildings appurtenant to the permitted structure,
such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or part of the main structure. (NOTE:
accessory structures are not exempt from any ordinance requirements). For a substantial
improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or
other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the
building.
"Structure" means a walled and roofed building that is principally above ground, a manufactured
home, a gas or liquid storage tank.





"Subdivision" means the division of a tract or parcel of land resulting in one or more new lots or
building sites for the purpose, whether immediately or in the future, of sale, other transfer of
ownership or land development, and includes divisions of land resulting from or made in connection
with the layout or development of a new street or roadway or a change in an existing street or
roadway.

"Substantial Damage" means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of
restoring the structure to its before-damaged-condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the
market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

"Substantial Improvement" means any combination of permitted repairs, reconstruction,
alteration, or improvements to a building, taking place during a 10-year period, in which the
cumulative cost equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the structure prior to the
improvement. The market value of the building means (1) the appraised value of the structure as
determined by the Fayette County Tax Assessor prior to the start of the initial repair or improvement,
or (2) in the case of damage, the value of the structure prior to the damage occurring. This term
includes structures which have incurred "substantial damage" regardless of the actual amount of
repair work performed. For the purposes of this definition, "substantial improvement" is considered
to occur when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor system, or other structural part of the
building commences, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.
The term does not, however, include those improvements of a building required to comply with
existing health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which are solely necessary to assure safe living
conditions, which have been pre-identified by the Code Enforcement Official, and not solely
triggered by an improvement or repair project.

"Substantially Improved Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision" is where the
repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation or improvement of the streets, utilities and pads equals or
exceeds 50 percent of the value of the streets, utilities and pads before the repair, reconstruction or
improvement commenced.

"Variance" is a grant of relief from the requirements of this ordinance which permits construction
in a manner otherwise prohibited by this ordinance.

"Violation" means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the
community’s floodplain management regulations. A structure or other development without the
elevation certificate, other certificates, or other evidence of compliance required in this ordinance is
presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.

Section 3. Permit Procedures and Requirements
3.1.  Permit Application Requirements

No owner or developer shall perform any development activities on a site without first meeting the
applicable requirements of this ordinance prior to commencing the proposed activity.

Unless specifically excluded by this ordinance, any landowner or developer desiring a permit for a

development activity shall submit to the Fayette County Engineering Department documentation
showing compliance with this ordinance.





No permit will be approved for any development activities that do not meet the requirements,
restrictions and criteria of this ordinance.

3.2. Floodplain Management Plan Requirements

A Floodplain Management Plan shall be required for all projects with development activities within,
either partially or completely, an Area of Special Flood Hazard. The plan shall include the following

items;

4} Site plan drawn to scale, which includes but is not limited to:

(a)

(b)

(©)
(d)
(e)
()
(2
(h)
@

Existing and proposed elevations of the area in question and the nature, location and
dimensions of existing and/or proposed structures, earthen fill placement, amount and
location of excavation material, and storage of materials or equipment;

For all proposed structures, spot ground elevations at building corners and 20-foot or
smaller intervals along the foundation footprint, or one foot contour elevations
throughout the building site;

Proposed locations of water supply, sanitary sewer, and utilities;

Proposed locations of drainage and stormwater management facilities;

Proposed grading plan;

Base flood elevations and future-conditions flood elevations;

Boundaries of the base flood floodplain and future-conditions floodplain;

If applicable, the location of the floodway; and

Certification of the above by a registered professional engineer or surveyor.

(2) Building and foundation design detail, including but not limited to:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest adjacent grade) of the lowest
floor, including basement, of all proposed structures;

Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential structure will be
floodproofed,

Certification that any proposed non-residential floodproofed structure meets the
criteria in Section 5.2(2);

For enclosures below the base flood elevation, location and total net area of
foundation openings are required in Section 5.1 (5); and

9





(e) Design plans certified by a registered professional engineer or architect for all
proposed structure(s).

(3) Description, based on engineering calculations or modeling, of the extent to which any
watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of the proposed development;

4) Hard copies and digital files of computer models, if any, copies of work maps, comparison
of pre-and post development conditions base flood elevations, future-conditions flood
elevations, flood protection elevations, Special Flood Hazard Areas and regulatory floodway
widths, flood profiles and all other computations and other information similar to that
presented in the FIS;

(5) Copies of all applicable State and Federal permits necessary for proposed development; and
(6) All appropriate certifications required under this ordinance.

The approved Floodplain Management Plan shall contain certification by the applicant that all
development activities will be done according to the plan or previously approved revisions., Any and
all development permits and/or use and occupancy certificates or permits may be revoked at any time
if the construction and development activities are not in strict accordance with approved plans.

3.3. Construction Stage Submittal Requirements

For all new construction and substantial improvements on sites with a Floodplain Management Plan,
the permit holder shall provide to Fayette County Engineering Department a certified as-built
Elevation Certificate or Floodproofing Certificate for non-residential construction including the
lowest floor elevation or flood-proofing level immediately after the lowest floor or flood-proofing is
completed. A final Elevation Certificate shall be provided after completion of construction including
final grading of the site. Any lowest floor certification made relative to mean sea level shall be
prepared by or under the direct supervision of a registered land surveyor or professional engineer and
certified by the same. When floodproofing is utilized for non-residential structures, said certification
shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer or architect and
certified by the same.

Any work undertaken prior to approval of these certifications shall be at the permit holder's risk. The
Fayette County Engineering Department shall review the above referenced certification data
submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately
and prior to further work being allowed to proceed. Failure to submit certification or failure to make
the corrections required hereby shall be cause to issue a stop work order for the project.

10





3.4,

Duties and Responsibilities of the Administrator

Duties of the Fayette County Engineering Department shall include, but shall not be limited to:

M

(@)

)

4)

(5)

(6)

(7

(8)

)

Review all development applications and permits to assure that the requirements of this
ordinance have been satisfied and to determine whether proposed building sites will be
reasonably safe from flooding;

Require that copies of all necessary permits from governmental agencies from which
approval is required by Federal or state law, including but not limited to Section 404 of the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, No. 33 U.S.C. 1334, be provided
and maintained on file;

When Base Flood Elevation data or floodway data have not been provided, then the Fayette
County Engineering Department shall require the applicant to obtain, review and reasonably
utilize any base flood elevation and floodway data available from a Federal, state or other
sources in order to meet the provisions of Sections 4 and 5;

Review and record the actual elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest adjacent

grade) of the lowest floor, including basement, of all new or substantially improved
structures;

Review and record the actual elevation, in relation to mean sea level to which any
substantially improved structures have been flood-proofed;

When floodproofing is utilized for a non-residential structure, the owner/developer shall
provide to the Fayette County Engineering Department certification of design criteria from a
registered professional engineer or architect;

Notify affected adjacent communities and the Georgia Department of Natural Resources
prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse and submit evidence of such notification
to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA);

Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the Areas of Special
Flood Hazard (e.g., where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary and
actual field conditions) the Fayette County Engineer shall make the necessary interpretation.
Any person contesting the location of the boundary shall be given a reasonable opportunity to
appeal the interpretation as provided in this ordinance. Where floodplain elevations have
been defined, the floodplain shall be determined based on flood elevations rather than the
area graphically delineated on the floodplain maps; and,

All records pertaining to the provisions of this ordinance shall be maintained by Fayette
County and shall be open for public inspection.

11





Section 4. Standards for Development

4.1.

(D

(2)

€)

4

4.2.

Definition of Floodplain Boundaries and Areas of Special Flood Hazard

Studied “A” zones, as identified in the FIS, shall be used to establish base flood elevations
whenever available.

For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the future-conditions flood
elevations shall be provided by Fayette County Engineering Department. If future-conditions
elevation data is not available from the Fayette County Engineering Department, then it shall
be determined by a registered professional engineer using a method approved by FEMA and
the Fayette County Engineering Department.

For streams or other drainage basins with drainage areas less that 100 acres, Areas of Special
Flood Hazard shall be determined by a registered professional engineer using a method

approved by the Fayette County Engineering Department, as required by the County
Engineer.

The Area of Special Flood Hazard shall be delineated for all man-made flood hazards (e.g.,
yard drains, stormwater management structures, inlets to storm sewer systems, etc.) by a

registered professional engineer.

Definition of Floodway Boundaries

The width of a floodway shall be determined from the FIS or a FEMA approved flood study. Forall
streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the regulatory floodway shall be provided by the
Fayette County Engineering Department. If floodway data is not available from the Fayette County
Engineering Department, then it shall be determined by a registered professional engineer using a
method approved by FEMA and the Fayette County Engineering Department.

4.3.

(1)

General Standards

No development shall be allowed within the future-conditions floodplain that could result in
any of the following:

(a) Raising the base flood elevation or future-conditions flood elevation equal to or more
than 0.01 foot;

(b) Reducing the base flood or future-conditions flood storage capacity;
(c) Changing the flow characteristics as to the depth and velocity of the waters of the

base flood or future-conditions flood as they pass both the upstream and the
downstream boundaries of the development area; or,

1z





(d)

Creating hazardous or erosion-producing velocities, or resulting in excessive
sedimentation.

(2) Any development within the future-conditions floodplain allowed under (1) above shall also
meet the following conditions:

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

®

Acceptable means of providing required compensation include lowering of natural
ground elevations within the floodplain, or lowedring of adjoining land areas to
create additional floodplain storage. In no case shall any required compensation be
provided via bottom storage or by excavating below the elevation of the top of the
natural (pre-development) stream channel unless such excavation results from the
widening or relocation of the stream channel;

Cut areas shall be stabilized and graded to a slope of no less than 2.0 percent;

Effective transitions shall be provided such that flow velocities occurring on both
upstream and downstream properties are not increased or decreased,;

Verification of no-rise conditions (0.01 foot or less), flood storage volumes, and flow
characteristics shall be provided via a step-backwater analysis meeting the
requirements of Section 4.4;

Public utilities and facilities, such as water, sanitary sewer, gas, and electrical
systems, shall be located and constructed to minimize or eliminate infiltration or
contamination from flood waters; and

Any significant physical changes to the base flood floodplain shall be submitted as a
Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) or Conditional Letter of Map
Amendment (CLOMA), whichever is applicable. The CLOMR submittal shall be
subject to approval by the Fayette County Engineering Department using the
Community Consent forms before forwarding the submittal package to FEMA for
final approval. The responsibility for forwarding the CLOMR to FEMA and for
obtaining the CLOMR approval shall be the responsibility of the applicant. Within
six months of the completion of construction, the applicant shall submit as-built
surveys for a final Letter of Map Revision (LOMR).

4.4. Engineering Study Requirements for Floodplain Encroachments

An engineering study is required, as appropriate to the proposed development activities on the site,
whenever a development proposes to disturb any land within the future-conditions floodplain, except
for a residential single-lot development on streams without established base flood elevations and/or
floodways for which the provisions of Section 5.4 apply. This study shall be prepared by a currently
registered Professional Engineer in the State of Georgia and made a part of the application for a
permit. This information shall be submitted to and approved by the Fayette County Engineering

13





Department prior to the approval of any permit which would authorize the disturbance of land
located within the future-conditions floodplain. Such study shall include:

(1)

2)

3)

“

4.5

Description of the extent to which any watercourse or floodplain will be altered or relocated
as a result of the proposed development;

Step-backwater analysis, using a FEMA -approved methodology approved by the Fayette
County Engineering Department. Cross-sections and flow information shall be obtained
whenever available and supplemented by the applicant or by the Engineering Department.
Computations will be shown duplicating FIS results and will then be rerun with the proposed
modifications to determine the new base flood profiles, and future-conditions flood profiles;

Floodplain storage calculations based on cross-sections (at least one every 100 feet) showing
existing and proposed floodplain conditions to show that base flood floodplain and future-

conditions floodplain storage capacity would not be diminished by the development;

The study shall include a preliminary plat, grading plan, or site plan, as appropriate, which
shall clearly define all future-conditions floodplain encroachments.

Floodway Encroachments

Located within Areas of Special Flood Hazard are areas designated as floodway. A floodway may be
an extremely hazardous area due to velocity flood waters, debris or erosion potential. In addition,
floodways must remain free of encroachment in order to allow for the discharge of the base flood
without increased flood heights. Therefore the following provisions shall apply:

(M

2)

)

Encroachments are prohibited, including earthen fill, new construction, substantial
improvements or other development within the regulatory floodway, except for activities
specifically allowed in (2) below.

Encroachments for bridges, culverts, roadways and utilities within the regulatory floodway
may be permitted provided it is demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses
performed in accordance with standard engineering practice that the encroachment shall not
result in any increase to the pre-project base flood elevations, floodway elevations, or
floodway widths during the base flood discharge. A registered professional engineer must
provide supporting technical data and certification thereof; and,

If the applicant proposes to revise the floodway boundaries, no permit authorizing the
encroachment into or an alteration of the floodway shall be issued by the Fayette County
Engineering Department until an affirmative Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR)
is issued by FEMA and no-rise certification is approved by the Fayette County Engineering
Department.

14





4.6. Maintenance Requirements

The property owner shall be responsible for continuing maintenance as may be needed within an
altered or relocated portion of a floodplain on his property so that the flood-carrying or flood storage
capacity is not diminished. The Fayette County Engineering Department may direct the property
owner (at no cost to Fayette County) to restore the flood-carrying or flood storage capacity of the
floodplain if the owner has not performed maintenance as required by the approved floodplain
management plan on file with the Fayette County Engineering Department,

Section 5. Provisions for Flood Damage Reduction

5.1.  General Standards

In all Areas of Special Flood Hazard the following provisions apply:

() New construction of principal buildings (residential or non-residential), including
manufactured homes, shall not be allowed within the limits of the future-conditions

floodplain, unless all requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have been met;

(2) New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be anchored to
prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure;

(3) New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be constructed
with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage;

4) New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be constructed by
methods and practices that minimize flood damage;

(5) Elevated Buildings - All new construction and substantial improvements of existing
structures that include any fully enclosed area located below the lowest floor formed by
foundation and other exterior walls shall be designed so as to be an unfinished and flood
resistant enclosure. The enclosure shall be designed to equalize hydrostatic flood forces on
exterior walls by allowing for the automatic entry and exit of floodwater.

(a) Designs for complying with this requirement must either be certified by a
professional engineer or architect or meet the following minimum criteria:

(1) Provide a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than
one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;

(ii) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade; and,

15





(6)

(7)

8)

9)

(10)

(1)

(12)

(1ii)  Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings or

devices provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwater in both
directions.

(b) So as not to violate the "Lowest Floor" criteria of this ordinance, the unfinished and
flood resistant enclosure shall solely be used for parking of vehicles, limited storage
of maintenance equipment used in connection with the premises, or entry to the
elevated area; and,

(c) The interior portion of such enclosed area shall not be partitioned or finished into
separate rooms.

All heating and air conditioning equipment and components (including ductwork), all
electrical, ventilation, plumbing, and other service facilities shall be designed and/or located
three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood
elevation, whichever is higher, so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within
the components during conditions of flooding;

Manufactured homes shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement.
Methods of anchoring may include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to

ground anchors. This standard shall be in addition to and consistent with applicable State
requirements for resisting wind forces;

New and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate
infiltration of flood waters into the system;

New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate

infiltration of flood waters into the systems and discharges from the systems into flood
waters;

On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them,
or contamination from them, during flooding;

Any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvement to a structure which is not compliant
with the provisions of this ordinance, shall be undertaken only if the non- conformity is not
furthered, extended or replaced; and

If the proposed development is located in multiple flood zones or multiple base flood

elevation cross the proposed site, the higher or more restrictive base flood elevation or future
condition elevation and development standards shall take precedence.

16





5.2. Building Standards for Structures and Buildings within the Future-Conditions
Floodplain

The following provisions, in addition to those in Section 5.1, shall apply:
(1 Residential and Non-Residential Building Structures

(a) New construction. New construction of principal buildings, including manufactured
homes shall not be allowed within the limits of the future-conditions floodplain
unless all requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have been met. If all of the
requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have been met, all new construction shall
have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated no lower than three (3) feet above
the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood elevation,
whichever is higher. Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate the
structure, openings sufficient to equalize the hydrologic flood forces on exterior walls
and to facilitate the unimpeded movements of floodwaters shall be provided in
accordance with standards of Section 5.1(5). A registered Professional Engineer or
Architect shall certify that the design and methods of construction are in accordance
with accepted standards of practice for meeting the provisions above, and shall
provide such certification to the Fayette County Engineering Department.

(b) Substantial Improvements. Substantial improvement of any principal structure or
manufactured home shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated no
lower than three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above the
future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher. Should solid foundation
perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure, openings sufficient to equalize the
hydrologic flood forces on exterior walls and to facilitate the unimpeded movements
of flood waters shall be provided in accordance with standards of Section 5.1(5). A
registered Professional Engineer or Architect shall certify that the design and
methods of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice for
meeting the provisions above, and shall provide such certification to the Fayette
County Engineering Department.

(2) Accessory Structures and Facilities

Accessory structures and facilities (i.e., barns, sheds, gazebos, detached garages, parking lots,
recreational facilities and other similar non-habitable structures and facilities) which are
permitted to be located within the limits of the floodplain shall be constructed of flood-
resistant materials and designed to pass all floodwater in accordance with Section 5.1(5) and
be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure.

17





(3) Standards for Recreational Vehicles

All recreational vehicles placed on sites must either:

(a)

(b)

Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed and ready for
highway use, (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is licensed, on its
wheels or jacking system, attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities
and security devices, and has no permanently attached structures or additions); or

The recreational vehicle must meet all the requirements for Residential Buildings—
Substantial Improvements (Section 5.2(1)(b)), including the anchoring and elevation
requirements.

4) Standards for Manufactured Homes

(a)

(b)

(c)

New manufactured homes shall not be allowed to be placed within the limits of the

future-conditions floodplain unless all requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have
been met.

Manufactured homes placed and/or substantially improved in an existing
manufactured home park or subdivision shall be elevated so that either:

(1) The lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated no lower than three
(3) feet above the level of the base flood elevation, or one (1) foot above the
future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher; or

(if)  The manufactured home chassis is elevated and supported by reinforced piers
(or other foundation elements of at least an equivalent strength) of no less
than 36 inches in height above grade.

All manufactured homes must be securely anchored to an adequately anchored
foundation system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral movement in accordance
with standards of Section 5.1(7).

5.3.  Building Standards for Structures and Buildings Authorized Adjacent to the Future-
Conditions Floodplain

For purposes of this ordinance, the term “‘adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain” includes: 1)
all buildings and structures on a property that contains (partially or entirely) an Area of Special Flood
Hazard; and 2) all buildings and structures on property that shares a common property line within
another parcel that contains an Area of Special Flood Hazard. Building and structures adjacent to the
future-conditions floodplain shall meet the following:

18





(M

54.

Residential and Non-Residential Buildings — For new construction or substantial
improvement of construction, the elevation of the lowest floor, including basement and
access to the building, shall be at least three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or one (1)
foot above the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher,

Compliance with the above requirement shall be determined by a certified as-built Elevation
Certificate or Flood-Proofing Certificate for non-residential construction including the lowest
floor elevation or floodproofing level and submitted immediately upon completion of
floodproofing or survey work. The Elevation Certificate shall be prepared by or under the
direct supervision of a registered land surveyor or professional engineer and certified by the
same. When flood-proofing is utilized for non-residential structures, said certification shall
be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer or architect and
certified by the same.

(a) Buildings and structures authorized adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain may
be exempt from the requirements of this section if the following conditions apply:

(1) The building(s) or structure(s) is not within the same sub-basin as the Area of
Special Flood Hazard and the drainage divide between the Area of Special
Flood Hazard and the building or structure of concern is at least three (3) feet
above the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions
flood elevation, whichever is higher; or

(il)  The Area of Special Flood Hazard is a man-made hazard associated with a
storm sewer system (e.g., a yard drain) and the grading within the sub-basin
provides unconstrained, positive drainage away from the building or structure
at a minimum slope of 2 percent.

(b) The Fayette County Engineering Department shall determine if either of these
conditions is applicable to a building or structure. Alternatively, the owner/
developed may provide a letter justifying applicability of the exemptions. The letter
shall be prepared by a registered professional engineer and shall be reviewed and
approved by the Fayette County Engineering Department in order for the exemption
to be valid. In either case, the owner/applicant shall be solely responsible for
providing any as-built elevation data necessary to determine applicability of the
exemptions. The elevation data shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision
of a registered land surveyor or professional engineer and certified by the same.

Building Standards for Residential Single-Lot Developments on Streams without an
Established Base Flood Elevations and/or Floodway (A-Zones)

For a residential single-lot development not part of a subdivision that has Areas of Special Flood
Hazard, where streams exist but no base flood data have been provided (A-Zones), the Fayette
County Engineering Department shall review and reasonably utilize any available scientific or
historic flood elevation data, base flood elevation and floodway data, or future-conditions flood

19





elevation data available from a Federal, State, local or other source, in order to administer the
provisions and standards of this ordinance.

If data are not available from any of these sources, the following provisions shall apply:

(1)

(2)

D

No encroachments, including structures or fill material, shall be located within an area equal

to twice the width of the stream or fifty (50) feet from the top of the bank of the stream,
whichever is greater.

In special flood hazard areas without base flood or future-conditions flood elevation data,
new construction and substantial improvements of existing structures shall have the lowest
floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement) elevated no less than three (3) feet
above the ground immediately around the building and positive drainage must be provided at
a minimum two (2) percent slope away from the building. Openings sufficient to facilitate
the unimpeded movements of floodwaters shall be provided in accordance with Section
5.1(5).

Building Standards for Areas of Shallow Flooding (AO-Zones)

Areas of Special Flood Hazard may include designated "AO" shallow flooding areas. These areas
have base flood depths of one (1) to three (3) feet above ground, with no clearly defined channel. In
these areas the following provisions apply:

(1)

(2

)

All substantial improvements of residential and non-residential structures shall have the
lowest floor, including basement, elevated to no lower than one (1) foot above the flood
depth number in feet specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), above the highest
adjacent grade. If no flood depth number is specified, the lowest floor, including basement,
shall be elevated at least three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade. Openings sufficient
to facilitate the unimpeded movements of flood waters shall be provided in accordance with
standards of Section 5.1(5).

Substantial improvement of a non-residential structure may be flood-proofed in lieu of
elevation. The structure, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, must be
designed to be water tight to the specified FIRM flood level plus one (1) foot above the
highest adjacent grade, with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water, and
structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads
and the effect of buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that
the design and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice.

Drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwater around and away from any proposed
structure.

20





5.0.

(1

2)

)

(4)
(5)

(6)

Standards for Subdivisions

All subdivision proposals shall identify the Areas of Special Flood Hazards and provide base
flood elevation data and future-conditions flood elevation data;

All residential lots in a subdivision proposal shall have sufficient buildable area outside of
the future-conditions floodplain such that encroachments into the future-conditions
floodplain for residential structures will not be required,;

All subdivision plans will provide the elevations of proposed structures in accordance with
Section 3.2;

All subdivision proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage;

All subdivision proposals shall have public utilities and facilities such as water, sanitary
sewer, gas, and electrical systems located and constructed to minimize or eliminate
infiltration of flood waters, and discharges from the systems into flood waters; and,

All subdivision proposals shall include adequate drainage and stormwater management
facilities per the requirements of Fayette County to reduce potential exposure to flood
hazards.

Section 6. Variance Procedures

The following variance and appeals procedures shall apply to an applicant who has been denied a
permit for a development activity or to an owner or developer who has not applied for a permit
because it 1s clear that the proposed development activity would be inconsistent with the provisions
of this ordinance. A request for a variance may be submitted by an applicant who has been denied a
permit by the Fayette County Engineering Department or by an owner or developer who has not
previously applied for a permit for the reasons stated herein above.

(D

()

Requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance shall be submitted to the
Fayette County Engineering Department. All such requests shall be heard and decided in
accordance with procedures to be published in writing by the Fayette County Engineering
Department. At a minimum, such procedures shall include notice to all affected parties and
the opportunity to be heard,

Any person adversely affected by any decision of the Fayette County Engineering
Department shall have the right to appeal such decision to the Fayette County Planning
Commission as established by Fayette County in accordance with procedures to be published
in writing by the Fayette County Planning Commission. At a minimum, such procedures
shall include notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard.

21





3

(4)

)

(6)

(7

(8)

Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Fayette County Planning Commission may
appeal such decision to the Fayette County State Court, as provided in Section 5-4-1 of the
Official Code of Georgia Annotated.

Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of Historic structures upon a
determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's
continued designation as an Historic structure, and the variance issued shall be the minimum
necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

Variances may be issued for development necessary for the conduct of a functionally
dependent use, provided the criteria of this Section are met, no reasonable alternative exists,
and the development is protected by methods that minimize flood damage during the base
flood and create no additional threats to public safety.

Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood levels
during the base flood discharge would result.

In reviewing such requests, the Fayette County Engineering Department and Fayette County
Planning Commission shall consider all technical evaluations, relevant factors, and all
standards specified in this and other sections of this ordinance.

Conditions for Variances:
(a) A variance shall be issued only when all of the following conditions are met:
(i) a finding of good and sufficient cause;

(i1) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional
hardship; and,

(1i1)  a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased
flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public
expense, or the creation of a nuisance.

(b) The provisions of this ordinance are minimum standards for flood loss reduction;
therefore, any deviation from the standards must be weighed carefully. Variances
shall only be issued upon determination that the variance is the minimum necessary,
considering the flood hazard, to afford relief; and, in the instance of a Historic
structure, a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary so as not to
destroy the historic character and design of the building,

(c) Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice specifying the
difference between the base flood elevation and the elevation of the proposed lowest
floor and stating that the cost of flood insurance will be commensurate with the
increased risk to life and property resulting from the reduced lowest floor elevation.

22





(d)  TheFayette County Engineering Department shall maintain the records of all appeal
actions and report any variances to the Federal Emergency Management Agency
upon request.

©)) Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request until the time the
request is acted upon, submit such information and documentation as Fayette County
Engineering Department and Fayette County Planning Commission shall deem necessary to
the consideration of the request.

(10)  Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this ordinance, Fayette
County Engineering Department and the Fayette County Planning Commission may attach
such conditions to the granting of variances as they deem necessary or appropriate, consistent
with the purposes of this ordinance.

(11)  Variances shall not be issued “after the fact.”

Section 7. Violations, Enforcement and Penalties

Any action or inaction which violates the provisions of this ordinance or the requirements of an
approved stormwater management plan or permit may be subject to the enforcement actions outlined
in this Section. Any such action or inaction which is continuous with respect to time is deemed to be
a public nuisance and may be abated by injunctive or other equitable relief. The imposition of any of
the penalties described below shall not prevent such equitable relief. The imposition of any of the
penalties described below shall not prevent such equitable relief.

7.1. Notice of Violation

If the Fayette County Engineering Department determines that an applicant or other responsible
person has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of a permit, an approved stormwater
management plan or the provisions of this ordinance, it shall issue a written notice of violation to
such applicant or other responsible person. Where a person is engaged in activity covered by this
ordinance without having first secured a permit therefore, the notice of violation shall be served on
the owner or the responsible person in charge of the activity being conducted on the site.

The notice of violation shall contain:

(1) The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible person;
@) The address or other description of the site upon which the violation is occurring;
(3) A statement specifying the nature of the violation;

(4) A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or inaction into
compliance with the permit, the stormwater management plan or this ordinance and the date

23





for the completion of such remedial action;

(5) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the person to whom the
notice of violation is directed; and,

(6) A statement that the determination of violation may be appealed to the Fayette County
Engineering Department by filing a written notice of appeal within thirty (30) days after the
notice of violation (except, that in the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to
public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be sufficient).

7.2. Penalties

In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been completed by
the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or more of the following
actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to whom the notice of violation was
directed. Before taking any of the following actions or imposing any of the following penalties, the
Fayette County Engineering Department shall first notify the applicant or other responsible person in
writing of its intended action, and shall provide a reasonable opportunity, of not less than ten (10)
days (except, that in the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public health or
public safety, 24 hours notice shall be sufficient) to cure such violation. In the event the applicant or
other responsible person fails to cure such violation after such notice and cure period, the Fayette
County Engineering Department may take any one or more of the following actions or impose any
one or more of the following penalties.

L) Stop Work Order -The Fayette County Engineering Department may issue a stop work
order which shall be served on the applicant or other responsible person. The stop work
order shall remain in effect until the applicant or other responsible person has taken the
remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violation or
violations described therein, provided the stop work order may be withdrawn or modified to
enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to
cure such violation or violations.

(2) Withhold Certificate of Occupancy - The Fayette County Engineering Department may
refuse to issue a certificate of occupancy for the building or other improvements constructed
or being constructed on the site until the applicant or other responsible person has taken the
remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations
described therein.

(3) Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit - The Fayette County Engineering
Department may suspend, revoke or modify the permit authorizing the development project.
A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be reinstated after the applicant or other
responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has
otherwise cured the violations described therein, provided such permit may be reinstated
(upon such conditions as the Fayette County Engineering Department may deem necessary)
to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to
cure such violations.

24





(4)

6)

Civil Penalties - In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to take the
remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure the violations
described therein within ten (10) days, or such greater period as the Fayette County
Engineering Department shall deem appropriate (except, that in the event the violation
constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be
sufficient) after the Fayette County Engineering Department has taken one or more of the
actions described above, the Fayette County Engineering Department may impose a penalty
not to exceed $1,000 (depending on the severity of the violation) for each day the violation is
not remediated after receipt of the notice of violation.

Criminal Penalties - For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, the Fayette
County Engineering Department may issue a citation to the applicant or other responsible
person, requiring such person to appear in Fayette County State Court to answer charges for
such violation. Upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed
$1,000 or imprisonment for 60 days or both. Each act of violation and each day upon which
any violation shall occur shall constitute a separate offense.

Ordinance adopted on

By:

Certified by:

Date:

Section III. If any part of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the judgment

of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect the remainder of this

enactment, and such remainder of this enactment shall remain in full force and effect.

Section IV. All laws, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which conflict with the

provisions of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed.

25





Section V. This Ordinance shall become effective upon its approval by the Board of
Commissioners; however, this Ordinance will not be implemented until October 1, 2008.

SO ORDAINED, this 28th day of August, 2008.

FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD
OF COMMISSIONERS

Jack Smith, Chairman

ATTEST:

Carol Chandler, Clerk

26





THE FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION met on August 7, 2008, at 7:00 P.M. in
the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Public Meeting Room,
First Floor, Fayetteville, Georgia.

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Douglas Powell, Chairman
Al Gilbert, Vice-Chairman
Bill Beckwith
Tim Thoms

MEMBERS ABSENT: Jim Graw

STAFF PRESENT: Phil Mallon, Director of Public Works
Vanessa Birrell, Stormwater Engineer
Robyn S. Wilson, P.C. Secretary/Zoning Coordinator
Sgt. Earl Williams

Welcome and Call to Order:

Chairman Powell called the Public Meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance. He introduced
the Board Members and Staff and confirmed there was a quorum present.

% % %k ok % %k ok k K %

1. Consideration of the Minutes of the meeting held on July 2. 2008.

Chairman Powell asked the Board Members if they had any comments or changes to the Minutes.
Tim Thoms made the motion to approve the Minutes. Al Gilbert seconded the motion. The motion
unanimously passed 4-0. Jim Graw was absent.

# ok %k ck ok ok ok ok ok ok

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION
ON AUGUST 7,2008 AND BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ON AUGUST 28, 2008.

2. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Development
Regulations regarding the revised Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning
District’s (MNGWPD) model Floodplain Management Ordinance to replace the
existing Article IV Floodplain Regulations in its entirety as presented by the
Engineering Department.






Page 2
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

Chairman Powell advised that the P.C. had held two (2) Public Meetings/Workshops to discuss the
proposed amendments. He noted that all of the items discussed for revisions had been made to the
proposed amendments. He thanked Phil Mallon and Vanessa Birrell for all of their hard work on the
proposed amendments.

Phil Mallon reported that both FEMA and the Environmental Protection Division have reviewed
the proposed amendments. He advised that there were two (2) changes which were requested to
be made.

Mr. Mallon pointed out that the first change was in Section 1.4., (1) which currently reads:
(1 The most recent Flood Insurance Study (FIS) on file with the Fayette County Engineering

Department -dated ; with accompanying maps and other supporting data
and any revision thereto are hereby adopted by reference.

The section should be amended to read:

(1) The September 26, 2008, Flood Insurance Study (FIS) on file with the Fayette County
Engineering Department with accompanying maps and other supporting data and any
revision thereto are hereby adopted by reference.

Mr. Mallon pointed out that the second change was in Section 5.5, (2) which was proposed to be
deleted; however, it will be inserted back into the ordinance as follows:

(2) Substantial improvement of a non-residential structure may be flood-proofed in lieu of
elevation. The structure, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, must be
designed to be water tight to the specified FIRM flood level plus one (1) foot above the
highest adjacent grade, with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water, and
structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads
and the effect of buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that
the design and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of
practice; and,

The following is the proposed Floodplain Management Ordinance; however, it does not reflect
the changes presented by Mr. Mallon.





Page 3
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

Article IV. FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AZEOOD-DAMAGE-PREVENTION
ORDINANCE

Table of Contents

e Section 1. General Provisions

Section 2. Definitions

Section 3. Permit Procedures and Requirements
Section 4. Standards for Development

Section 5. Provisions for Flood Hazard Reduction
e Section 6. Variance Procedures

e Section 7. Violations, Enforcement and Penalties

Introduction

It is hereby determined that:

The flood hazard areas of Gurisdietion) Fayette County are subject to periodic inundation which
may result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and
governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood relief and protection, and
impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety and general
welfare.

Flood hazard areas can serve important stormwater management, water quality, stream bank
protection, stream corridor protection, wetland preservation and ecological purposes when
permanently protected as undisturbed or minimally disturbed areas,

Effective floodplain management and flood hazard protection activities can (1) Protect human life
and health; (2) Minimize damage to private property; (3) Minimize damage to public facilities and
infrastructure such as water and gas mains, electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets and bridges
located in floodplains; and (4) Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control
projects associated with flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general public.

Article IX, Section II of the Constitution of the State of Georgia and Section 36-1-20(a) of the
Official Code of Georgia Annotated have delegated the responsibility to local governmental units to
adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry.
Therefore, Gurisdietion), Fayette County, Georgia, does ordain this ordinance and establishes this
set of floodplain management and flood hazard reduction policies for the purpose of regulating the
use of flood hazard areas. It is determined that the regulation of flood hazard arecas and the
prevention of flood damage are in the public interest and will minimize threats to public health and





Page 4
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

safety, as well as to private and public property.
Section 1. General Provisions
1.1,  Purpose and Intent

The purpose of this ordinance is to protect, maintain and enhance the public health, safety,
environment and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions
in flood hazard areas, as well as to protect the beneficial uses of floodplain areas for water quality
protection, stream bank and stream corridor protection, wetlands preservation and ecological and
environmental protection by provisions designed to:

(1) Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve such uses, be
protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;

(2) Restrict or prohibit uses which are dangerous to health, safety and property due to flooding or
erosion hazards, or which increase flood heights, velocities, or erosion;

(3) Control filling, grading, dredging and other development which may increase flood damage
or erosion;

(4) Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert flood
waters or which may increase flood hazards to other lands;

(5) Limit the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers
which are involved in the accommeodation of flood waters; and,

6) Protect the stormwater management, water quality, stream bank protection, stream corridor
protection, wetland preservation and ecological functions of natural floodplain areas.

1.2.  Applicability

This ordinance shall be applicable to all Areas of Special Flood Hazard within (jurisdietion)
Fayette County and all areas “adjacent” to an Area of Special Flood Hazard, as defined herein.

A property shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this ordinance whenever a building
permit, land disturbance permit, certificate of zoning compliance, subdivision, or
reconfiguration of a parcel is required and/or approved by the county. The conditions of this
ordinance shall supersede floodplain constraints depicted on final plats, construction
drawings, surveys, etc. The effective date of this ordinance is October 1, 2008.





Page 5
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

1.3.  Designation of Ordinance Administrator

The (title-ofadministratory-or{designee) County Engineer is hereby appointed to administer and

implement the provisions of this ordinance.
1.4.  Basis for Area of Special Flood Hazard — Flood Area Maps and Studies
For the purposes of this ordinance, the following are adopted by reference:

(1) The most recent Flood Insurance Study (FIS) on file with the Fayette County Engineering
Department ;-dated ; with accompanying maps and other supporting data

and any revision thereto are hereby adopted by reference—EF&i—B@e&e—laﬁd—awaﬁ—&eqtmalby

(2) Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the base flood elevation or
delineation of the 100-year floodplain and flood-prone areas include:

(a) Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United States Army Corps of
Engineers, the United States Geological Survey or any other local, State or Federal

agency applicable to (jurisdietion); Fayette County; or

(b) Any base flood study authored by a registered professional engineer in the State of
Georgia which has been prepared by FEMA approved methodology and approved by

(oecal-permittingauthority)- the Fayettc County Engineering Department.

(3) Other studies which may be relied upon for the establishment of the future-conditions flood
elevation or delineation of the future-conditions floodplain and flood-prone areas include:

(a) Any flood or flood-related study conducted by the United States Army Corps of
Engineers, the United States Geological Survey, or any other local, State or Federal

agency applicable to (jurisdietion) Fayette County or

(b) Any future-conditions flood study that is 1) authored by a registered professional
engineer in the State of Georgla, 2) prepared usmg FEMA approved
methodology; and 3 s

approved by Gee&l—perﬂattm«g—aﬂthm) the Fayette County Engmeermg

Department.






Page 6
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

(4) The repository for public inspection of the FIS, accompanying maps and other supporting
data is located at {speeify—repositoryloeation) the Fayette County Engineering

Department.
1.5. Compatibility with Other Regulations

This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal any other ordinance, rule, regulation, statute,
easement, covenant, deed restriction or other provision of law. The requirements of this ordinance
are in addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law,
and where any provision of this ordinance imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any
other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, whichever provision is more restrictive or
impose higher protective standards for human health or the environment shall control.

1.6.  Severability

If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this ordinance shall
be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not affect or invalidate
the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this ordinance,

1.7.  Warning and Disclaimer of Liability

The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance is considered reasonable for regulatory
purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will occur;
flood heights may be increased by manmade or natural causes. This ordinance does not imply that
land outside the Areas of Special Flood Hazard or uses permitted within such areas will be free from
flooding or flood damages. This ordinance shall not create liability on the part of Gurisdietion)
Fayette County or by any officer or employee thereof for any flood damages that result from
reliance on this ordinance or any administrative decision lawfully made there under.

Section 2. Definitions

""Addition (to an existing building)" means any walled and roofed expansion to the perimeter of a
building in which the addition is connected by a common load-bearing wall other than a fire wall.
Any walled and roofed addition which is connected by a fire wall or is separated by an independent
perimeter load-bearing wall shall be considered New Construction.

"Appeal" means a request for a review of the (appeinted—efficial) County Engineer’s
interpretation of any provision of this ordinance.





Page 7
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

"Area of Shallow Flooding" means a designated AO or AH Zone on a community's Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with base flood depths from one to three feet, and/or where a clearly
defined channel does not exist, where the path of flooding is unpredictable and indeterminate, and
where velocity flow may be evident.

""Area of Special Flood Hazard" is the land subject to a one percent or greater chance of flooding
in any given year. This includes all floodplain and flood prone areas at or below the base flood
elevation (including A, A1-30, A-99, AE, AO, AH, and AR on the FHBM or the FIRM), all
floodplain and flood prone areas at or below the future-conditions flood elevation, and all other flood
prone areas as referenced in Section 1.4. Adl-streams-with-a-drainage-area-of100-acres-orgreater
shallhave thearea-of special Hood-hazard delineated. For drainage areas less than 100 acres, the

area of special flood hazard shall be delineated at the discretion of the County Engineer.
"Base Flood" means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any
given year, also known as the 100-year flood.

""Base Flood Elevation" means the highest water surface elevation anticipated at any given point
during the base flood.

""Basement" means that portion of a building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on
more than one side en-all-sides.

"Building' means any structure built for support, shelter, or enclosure for any occupancy or storage.
*“County Engineer” means the person so appointed by the Fayette County Board of
Commissioners and his/her employees designated to enforce and interpret this article. If not
designated otherwise, the County Engineer is the Director of Engineering.

"Development" means any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate including but
not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, clearing, grubbing, grading,
paving, any other installation of impervious cover, excavation or drilling operations or storage of
equipment or materials.

"Elevated Building" means a non-basement building built to have the lowest floor of the lowest
enclosed area elevated above the ground level by means of fill, solid foundation perimeter walls,
pilings, columns, piers, or shear walls adequately anchored so as not to impair the structural integrity
of the building during a base flood event.

"Existing Construction" Any structure for which the "start of construction" commenced before 23
June 1983 (the date of Fayette County ) orlgmal ﬂoodplam management regulatlon) {-l—e—the

“Exnstmg Manufactured Home Park or Subd1v1510n" means a manufactured home park or
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum the installation of utilities, the construction of
streets and ﬁnaI site gradmg or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before a sieeefﬁeel&te

23 June 1983 (the date of Fayette County’s orlgmal floodplam management regulatlon)





Page 8
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

"Expansion to an Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision' means the preparation of
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed, including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads.
"FEMA" means the Federal Emergency Management Agency.
"Flood" or "Flooding'" means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation
of normally dry land areas from:

(a) the overflow of inland ertidal waters; or

(b) the unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.
"Flood Hazard Boundary Map" or "FHBM" means an official map of a community, issued by
the Federal Insurance Administration, where the boundaries of areas of special flood hazard have
been defined as Zone A.
"Flood Insurance Rate Map'" or "FIRM" means an official map of a community, issued by the
Federal Insurance Administration, delineating the areas of special flood hazard and/or risk premium
zones applicable to the community.
"Flood Insurance Study" or "FIS" means the official report by the Federal Insurance
Administration evaluating flood hazards and containing flood profiles and water surface elevations
of the base flood.
"Floodplain" means any land area susceptible to flooding during the base flood.
"Floodproofing" means any combination of structural and non-structural additions, changes, or
adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real
property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and their contents,
"Floodway" or "Regulatory Floodway" means the channel of a stream or other watercourse and
the adjacent areas of the floodplain which is necessary to contain and discharge the base flood flow
without cumulatively increasing the base flood elevation more than one foot.
"Functionally Dependent Use" means a use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is
located or carried out in close proximity to water.
"Future-conditions Flood" means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or
exceeded in any given year based on future-conditions hydrology. Also known as the 100-year
future-conditions flood.
"Future-conditions Flood Elevation" means the flood standard equal to or higher than the Base
Flood Elevation. The Future-conditions Flood Elevation is defined as the highest water surface
anticipated at any given point during the future-conditions flood.
"Future-conditions Floodplain" means any land area susceptible to flooding by the future-
conditions flood.
"Future-conditions Hydrology" means the flood discharges associated with projected_land-use
conditions based on a community’s zoning map, comprehensive land-use plans, and/or watershed
study projections, and without consideration of projected future construction of flood detention
structures or projected future hydraulic modifications within a stream or other waterway, such as
bridge and culvert construction, fill, and excavation.





Page 9
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

"Highest Adjacent Grade" means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface, prior to
construction, adjacent to the proposed foundation of a building.
"Historic Structure' means any structure that is;

(a) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained
by the U.S. Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of
the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National
Register;

(b) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing
to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily
determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;

(c) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places and determined as eligible
by states with historic preservation programs which have been approved by the
Secretary of the Interior; or

(d) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places and determined as eligible
by communities with historic preservation programs that have been certified either

by:
1. An approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior, or
2, Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs.

"Lowest Floor" means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including basement. An
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, used solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or
storage, in an area other than a basement, is not considered a building's lowest floor, provided that
such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of other provisions of this
ordinance.

"Manufactured Home" means a building, transportable in one or more sections built on a
permanent chassis and designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when connected
to the required utilities. The term includes any structure commonly referred to as a “mobile home”
regardless of the date of manufacture. The term also includes parked trailers, travel trailers and
similar transportable structures placed on a site for 180 consecutive days or longer and intended to be
improved property.

"Mean Sea Level" means the average height of the sea for all stages of the tide. It is used as a
reference for establishing various elevations within the floodplain. For purposes of this ordinance
the term is synonymous with National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) and/or the North American
Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988.

""National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD)" as corrected in 1929 is a vertical control used as a
reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.

"New Construction" means any structure (see definition) for which the “start of construction"
commenced after June 23, 1983, and includes any subsequent improvements to the structure. .5






Page 10
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

"New Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision" means a manufactured home park or
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of
streets, and either final 31te grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after June

"North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988" is a vertical control used as a reference for
establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.

"Owner" means the legal or beneficial owner of a site, including but not limited to, a mortgagee or
vendee in possession, receiver, executor, trustee, lessee or other person, firm or corporation in
control of the site.

"Permit" means the permit Certificate of Zoning Compliance issued by the-{leeal-permitting
autherity) Fayette County to the applicant which is required prior to undertaking any development
activity.

"Recreational Vehicle' means a vehicle which is:

(a) built on a single chassis;

(b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;

(©) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by light duty truck; and,

(d) designed primarily net for use as-a—permanent-dwelingbut as temporary living
quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use and not for use as a
permanent dwelling.

"Site' means the parcel of land being developed, or the portion thereof on which the development
project is located.

"Start of Construction" means the date the permit was issued, provided the actual start of
construction, repair, reconstruction, or improvement was within 180 days of the permit date. The
actual start means the first placement of permanent construction of the structure such as the pouring
of slabs or footings, installation of piles, construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of
excavation, and includes the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. A minimum of
one inspection approval must be obtained as evidence that work was commenced or that work
has continued. Permanent construction does not include initial land preparation, such as clearing,
grading and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include
excavation for a basement, footings, piers or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor
does it include the installation on the property of buildings appurtenant to the permitted structure,
such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or part of the main structure, (NOTE:
accessory structures are not exempt from any ordinance requirements). For a substantial
improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or
other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the
building.

"Structure" means a walled and roofed building that is principally above ground, a manufactured
home, a gas or liquid storage tank.





Page 11
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

"Subdivision" means the division of a tract or parcel of land resulting in one or more new lots or
building sites for the purpose, whether immediately or in the future, of sale, other transfer of
ownership or land development, and includes divisions of land resulting from or made in connection
with the layout or development of a new street or roadway or a change in an existing street or
roadway.

"Substantial Damage" means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of
restoring the structure to it's before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the
market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

"Substantial Improvement" means any combination of permitted repairs, reconstruction,
alteration, or improvements to a building, taking place during a 10-year period, in which the
cumulative cost equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the structure prior to the
improvement. The market value of the building means (1) the appraised value of the structure as
determined by the Fayette County Tax Assessor prior to the start of the initial repair or
improvement, or (2) in the case of damage, the value of the structure prior to the damage occurring.
This term includes structures which have incurred "substantial damage" regardless of the actual
amount of repair work performed. For the purposes of this definition, "substantial improvement" is
considered to occur when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor system, or other structural part
of the building commences, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the
building. The term does not, however, include those improvements of a building required to comply
with existing health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which are solely necessary to assure safe
living conditions, which have been pre-identified by the Code Enforcement Official, and not solely
triggered by an improvement or repair project.

"Substantially Improved Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision'" is where the
repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation or improvement of the streets, utilities and pads equals or
exceeds 50 percent of the value of the streets, utilities and pads before the repair, reconstruction or
improvement commenced.

"Variance" is a grant of relief from the requirements of this ordinance which permits construction
in a manner otherwise prohibited by this ordinance.

"Violation" means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the
community’s floodplain management regulations. A structure or other development without the
elevation certificate, other certificates, or other evidence of compliance required in this ordinance is
presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.

Section 3. Permit Procedures and Requirements
3.1. Permit Application Requirements
No owner or developer shall perform any development activities on a site where-an-AreaofSpeeial

Flood Hazard islocated without first meeting the applicable requirements of this ordinance prior to
commencing the proposed activity.





Page 12
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

Unless specifically excluded by this ordinance, any 1andowner or developer desmng a permit for a
development activity shall submit to th otk 7

provided-by the Fayette County Engmeerlng Department documentatlon showmg complmnce
with this ordinance.

No permit will be approved for any development activities that do not meet the requirements,
restrictions and criteria of this ordinance.

3.2. Floodplain Management Plan Requirements

Floodplaln Management Plan shall be required for all projects w1th development activities
within, either partially or completely, an Area of Special Flood Hazard. This plan shall
include the following items:

(1) Site plan drawn to scale, which includes but is not limited to:

(a) Existing and proposed elevations of the area in question and the nature, location and
dimensions of existing and/or proposed structures, earthen fill placement, amount and
location of excavation material, and storage of materials or equipment;

(b) Fore all proposed structures, spot ground elevations at building corners and 20-foot
or smaller intervals along the foundation footprint, or one foot contour elevations
throughout the building site;

(c) Proposed locations of water supply, sanitary sewer, and utilities;

(d) Proposed locations of drainage and stormwater management facilities;

(e) Proposed grading plan;

() Base flood elevations and future-conditions flood elevations;

(2) Boundaries of the base flood floodplain and future-conditions floodplain;

(h) If applicable, the location of the floodway; and

(i) Certification of the above by a registered professional engineer or surveyor.

(2) Building and foundation design detail, including but not limited to:

(a) Elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest adjacent grade) of the lowest floor,
including basement, of all proposed structures;

(b) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential structure will be
floodproofed.

(c) Certification that any proposed non-residential floodproofed structure meets the
criteria in Section 5.2(2);





Page 13
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

(d) For enclosures below the base flood elevation, location and total net area of
foundation openings as required in Section 5.1(5).

(e) Design plans certified by a registered professional engineer or architect for all
proposed structure(s).

(3) Description, based on engineering calculations of modeling, of the extent to which any
watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of the proposed development;

(4) Hard copies and digital files of computer models, if any, copies of work maps, comparison
of pre-and post development conditions base flood elevations, future-conditions flood
elevations, flood protection elevations, Special Flood Hazard Areas and regulatory floodway
widths, flood profiles and all other computations and other information similar to that
presented in the FIS;

&) Copies of all applicable State and Federal permits necessary for proposed
development; and

(0) All appropriate certifications required under this ordinance.

The approved Floodplain Management ~leed damage-prevention Plan shall contain certification by
the applicant that all development activities will be done according to the plan or previously
approved revisions. Any and all development permits and/or use and occupancy certificates or
permits may be revoked at any time if the construction and development activities are not in strict
accordance with approved plans.

3.3. Construction Stage Submittal Requirements

For all new construction and substantial improvements on sites with a Floodplain Management/fleed
damage prevention Plan, the permit holder shall provide to the (administrater) Fayette County
Engineering Department a certified as-built Elevation Certificate, or Flood-proofing Certificate for
non-residential construction, including the lowest floor elevation or flood-proofing level immediately
after the lowest floor or flood-proofing is completed. A final Elevation Certificate shall be provided
after completion of construction including final grading of the site. Any lowest floor certification
made relative to mean sea level shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a registered
land surveyor or professional engineer and certified by same. When flood-proofing is utilized for
non-residential structures, said certification shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a
professional engineer or architect and certified by same.





Page 14
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

Any work undertaken prior to approval of these certifications shall be at the permit holder's risk. The
(administrator) Fayette County Engineering Department shall review the above referenced
certification data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit
holder immediately and prior to further work being allowed to proceed. Failure to submit
certification or failure to make the corrections required hereby shall be cause to issue a stop work
order for the project.

3.4.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Administrator

Duties of the Fayette County Engineering Department shall include, but shall not be limited to:

(M

(2)

)

(4)

(3)

(6)

(7

Review all development applications and permits to assure that the requirements of this
ordinance have been satisfied and to determine whether proposed building sites will be
reasonably safe from flooding;

Require that copies of all necessary permits from governmental agencies from which
approval is required by Federal or state law, including but not limited to Section 404 of the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, #33 U.S.C. 1334, be provided
and maintained on file;

When base flood elevation data or floodway data have not been provided, then the Fayette
County Engineering Department shall require the applicant to obtain, review and
reasonably utilize any base flood elevation and floodway data available from a Federal, state
or other sources in order to meet the provisions of Sections 4 and 5;

Review and record the actual elevation in relation to mean sea level (or highest adjacent

grade) of the lowest floor, including basement, of all new or substantially improved
structures;

Review and record the actual elevation, in relation to mean sea level to which any
substantially improved structures have been flood-proofed;

When flood-proofing is utilized for a non-residential structure, the owner/developer shall

provide to the Fayette County Engineering Department shall-obtain certification of
design criteria from a registered professional engineer or architect;

Notify affected adjacent communities and the Georgia Department of Natural Resources
prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse and submit evidence of such notification
to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA);





Page 15
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

®)

9

Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the Areas of Special
Flood Hazard (e.g., where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary and
actual field conditions) the Fayette County Engineer shall make the necessary
interpretation. Any person contesting the location of the boundary shall be given a
reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as provided in this ordinance. Where
floodplain elevations have been defined, the floodplain shall be determined based on flood
elevations rather than the area graphically delineated on the floodplain maps; and,

All records pertaining to the provisions of this ordinance shall be maintained inthe-office-of
the by Fayette County and shall be open for public inspection.

Section 4. Standards for Development

4.1.

M

(2)

€)

4

4.2,

(D

Definition of Floodplain Boundaries and Areas of Special Flood Hazards

Studied “A” zones, as identified in the FIS, shall be used to establish base flood elevations
whenever available.

For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the future-conditions flood
elevations shall be provided by the lecal permittingautherity) Fayette County Engineering
Department. If future-conditions elevation data is not available from (eeal-permitting
autherity) the Fayette County Engineering Department, then it shall be determined by a
registered professional engineer using a method approved by FEMA and the eeal-permitting
authority) Fayette County Engineering Department.

For streams or other drainage basins with drainage areas less that 100 acres, Areas of
Special Flood hazard shall be determined by a registered professional engineer using a

method approved by the Fayette County Engineering Department, as required by the
County Engineer,

The Area of Special Flood Hazard shall be delineated for all man-made flood hazards

(e.g., yard drains, stormwater management structures, inlets to storm sewer systems,
etc.) by a registered professional engineer.

Definition of Floodway Boundaries

The width of a floodway shall be determined from the FIS or FEMA approved flood study.
For all streams with a drainage area of 100 acres or greater, the regulatory floodway shall be
provided by the Qocal-permittingautherity) Fayette County Engineering Department, [f
floodway data is not available from the (leecal-permitting-authority) Fayette County





Page 16
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

4.3.

(1)

2)

Engineering Department , then it shall be determined by a registered professional engineer

using a method approved by FEMA and the {eeal-permittingauthority) Fayette County
Engineering Department.

General Standards

No development shall be allowed within the future-conditions floodplain that could result in

any of the following:

(a) Raising the base flood elevation or future-conditions flood elevation equal to or more
than 0.01 foot;

(b) Reducing the base flood or future-conditions flood storage capacity;

(c) Changing the flow characteristics as to the depth and velocity of the waters of the
base flood or future-conditions flood as they pass both the upstream and the
downstream boundaries of the development area; or,

(d) Creating hazardous or erosion-producing velocities, or resulting in excessive

sedimentation.

Any development within the future-conditions floodplain allowed under (1) above shall also
meet the following conditions:

(b)
(©

(d)

e%‘”—t—he—eﬁemaehmeﬁt—Acceptable means of pr0v1d1ng requ1red compensatlon mclude
lowering of natural ground elevations within the floodplain, or lowering of adjoining
land areas to create additional floodplain storage. In no case shall any required
compensation be provided via bottom storage or by excavating below the elevation of
the top of the natural (pre-development) stream channel unless such excavation
results from the widening or relocation of the stream channel;

Cut areas shall be stabilized and graded to a slope of no less than 2.0 percent;
Effective transitions shall be provided such that flow velocities occurring on both
upstream and downstream properties are not increased or decreased;

Verification of no-rise conditions (0.01 foot or less), flood storage volumes, and flow
characteristics shall be provided via a step-backwater analysis meeting the
requirements of Section 4.4;





Page 17
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

4.4.

(e) Public utilities and facilities, such as water, sanitary sewer, gas, and electrical
systems, shall be located and constructed to minimize or eliminate infiltration or
contamination from flood waters; and

(H) Any significant physical changes to the base flood floodplain shall be submitted as a
Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) or Conditional Letter of Map
Amendment (CLOMA), whichever is applicable. The CLOMR submittal shall be
subject to approval by the-(lecal-permitting—autherity) the Fayette County
Engineering Department using the Community Consent forms before forwarding
the submittal package to FEMA for final approval. The responsibility for forwarding
the CLOMR to FEMA and for obtaining the CLOMR approval shall be the
responsibility of the applicant. Within six months of the completion of construction,

the applicant shall submit as-built surveys for a final Letter of Map Revision
(LOMR).

Engincering Study Requirements for Floodplain Encroachments

An engineering study is required, as appropriate to the proposed development activities on the site,
whenever a development proposes to disturb any land within the future-conditions floodplain, except
for a residential single-lot development on streams without established base flood elevations and/or
floodways for which the provisions of Section 5.4 apply. This study shall be prepared by a registered
Professional Engineer in the State of Georgia and made a part of the application for a permit. This
information shall be submitted to and approved by the Qecal permitting-autherity) Fayette County
Engineering Department prior to the approval of any permit which would authorize the disturbance
of land located within the future-conditions floodplain. Such study shall include:

(1

(2)

(3)

Description of the extent to which any watercourse or floodplain will be altered or relocated
as a result of the proposed development;

Step-backwater analysis, using a FEMA-approved methodology approved by the {eeal

permitiingautherity) Fayette County Engineering Department. Cross-sections and flow
information shall be obtained whenever available and supplemented by the applicant or

by the Fayette County Engmeermg Department}andﬂewmfermatwn—mﬁ-lmbtmmd

fn%ﬂaa%}en%}H—b&ebtamed—wheﬂe%i;avaﬂable— Computatlons w111 be shown duphcatmg

FIS results and will then be rerun with the proposed modifications to determine the new base
flood profiles, and future-conditions flood profiles;

Floodplain storage calculations based on cross-sections (at least one every 100 feet) showing
existing and proposed floodplain conditions to show that base flood floodplain and future-
conditions floodplain storage capacity would not be diminished by the development;





Page 18
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

(4)  The study shall include a preliminary plat, grading plan, or site plan, as appropriate, which
shall clearly define all future-conditions floodplain encroachments.

4.5. Floodway Encroachments

Located within Areas of Special Flood Hazard are areas designated as floodway. A floodway may be
an extremely hazardous area due to velocity flood waters, debris or erosion potential. In addition,
floodways must remain free of encroachment in order to allow for the discharge of the base flood
without increased flood heights. Therefore the following provisions shall apply:

(1) Encroachments are prohibited, including earthen fill, new construction, substantial
improvements or other development within the regulatory floodway, except for activities
specifically allowed in (2) below.

(2) Encroachments for bridges, culverts, roadways and utilities within the regulatory floodway
may be permitted provided it is demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses
performed in accordance with standard engineering practice that the encroachment shall not
result in any increase to the pre-project base flood elevations, floodway elevations, or
floodway widths during the base flood discharge. A registered professional engineer must
provide supporting technical data and certification thereof; and,

(3) If the applicant proposes to revise the floodway boundaries, no permit authorizing the
encroachment into or an alteration of the floodway shall be issued by the Fayette County
Engineering Department until an affirmative Conditional Letter of Map Revision
(CLOMR) is issued by FEMA and no-rise certification is approved by the Fayette County
Engineering Department.

4.6. Maintenance Requirements

The property owner shall be responsible for continuing maintenance as may be needed within an
altered or relocated portion of a floodplain on his property so that the flood-carrying or flood storage
capacity is not diminished. The Fayette County Engineering Department may direct the property
owner (at no cost to Fayette County) to restore the flood-carrying or flood storage capacity of the
floodplain if the owner has not performed maintenance as required by the approved floodplain
management plan on file with the Fayette County Engineering Department.





Page 19
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

Section 5. Provisions for Flood Damage Reduction

5.1.

General Standards

In all Areas of Special Flood Hazard the following provisions apply:

(1)

(2)

3)

4)

()

New construction of principal buildings (residential or non-residential), including
manufactured homes, shall not be allowed within the limits of the future-conditions
tfloodplain, unless all requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have been met;

New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be anchored to
prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure;

New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be constructed
with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage;

New construction or substantial improvements of existing structures shall be constructed by
methods and practices that minimize flood damage;

Elevated Buildings - All new construction and substantial improvements of existing
structures that include any fully enclosed area located below the lowest floor formed by
foundation and other exterior walls shall be designed so as to be an unfinished and flood
resistant enclosure. The enclosure shall be designed to equalize hydrostatic flood forces on
exterior walls by allowing for the automatic entry and exit of floodwater.

(a) Designs for complying with this requirement must either be certified by a
professional engineer or architect or meet the following minimum criteria;

(i) Provide a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than
one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;

(i)  Thebottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade; and,
(iii)  Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings or

devices provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwater in both
directions.





Page 20
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

(6)

(7)

(8)

9

(10)

(11)

(12)

(b) So as not to violate the "Lowest Floor" criteria of this ordinance, the unfinished and
flood resistant enclosure shall solely be used for parking of vehicles, limited storage
of maintenance equipment used in connection with the premises, or entry to the
elevated area; and,

(c) The interior portion of such enclosed area shall not be partitioned or finished into
separate rooms.

All heating and air conditioning equipment and components (including ductwork), all
electrical, ventilation, plumbing, and other service facilities shall be designed and/or located
three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood
elevation, whichever is higher, so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within
the components during conditions of flooding;

Manufactured homes shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement.
Methods of anchoring may include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to
ground anchors. This standard shall be in addition to and consistent with applicable State
requirements for resisting wind forces;

New and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate
infiltration of flood waters into the system;

New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate
infiltration of flood waters into the systems and discharges from the systems into flood
waters;

On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them,
or contamination from them, during flooding; and,

Any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvement to a structure which is not compliant
with the provisions of this ordinance, shall be undertaken only if the non- conformity is not
furthered, extended or replaced.

If the proposed development is located in multiple flood zones or multiple base flood
elevation cross the proposed site, the higher or more restrictive base flood elevation or future
condition elevation and development standards shall take precedence.





Page 21

August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

5.2. Building Standards for Structures and Buildings within the Future-Conditions
Floodplain

The following provisions, in addition to those in Section 5.1, shall apply:

(N Residential Building and Non-Residential Building Structures

(a)

(b)

New construction. New construction of principal buildings, including manufactured
homes shall not be allowed within the limits of the future-conditions floodplain
unless all requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have been met. If all of the
requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have been met, all new construction shall
have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated no lower than three (3) feet above
the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood elevation,
whichever is higher. Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate the
structure, openings sufficient to equalize the hydrologic flood forces on exterior walls
and to facilitate the unimpeded movements of floodwaters shall be provided in
accordance with standards of Section 5.1(5). A registered Professional Engineer or
Architect shall certify that the design and methods of construction are in
accordance with accepted standards of practice for meeting the provisions
above, and shall provide such certification to the Fayette County Engineering
Department.

Substantial Improvements. Substantial improvement of any principal structure or
manufactured home shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated no
lower than three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above the
future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher. Should solid foundation
perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure, openings sufficient to equalize the
hydrologic flood forces on exterior walls and to facilitate the unimpeded movements
of flood waters shall be provided in accordance with standards of Section 5.1(5). A
registered Professional Engineer or Architect shall certify that the design and
methods of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice
for meeting the provisions above, and shall provide such certification to the
Fayette County Engineering Department.






Page 22
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

(2)

(3)

Accessory Structures and Facilities

Accessory structures and facilities (i.e., barns, sheds, gazebos, detached garages, parking lots,
recreational facilities and other similar non-habitable structures and facilities) which are
permitted to be located within the limits of the floodplain shall be constructed of flood-
resistant materials and designed to pass all floodwater in accordance with Section 5.1(5) and
be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement of the structure.

Standards for Recreational Vehicles

All recreational vehicles placed on sites must either:

(a) Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days and be fully licensed and ready for
highway use, (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is licensed, on its

wheels or jacking system, attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities
and security devices, and has no permanently attached structures or additions); or





Page 23
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

(4)

5.3.

(b)  The recreational vehicle must meet all the requirements for Residential Buildings—
Substantial Improvements (Section 5.2(1b), including the anchoring and elevation
requirements,

Standards for Manufactured Homes

(a) New manufactured homes shall not be allowed to be placed within the limits of the
future-conditions floodplain unless all requirements of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 have
been met.

(b)  Manufactured homes placed and/or substantially improved in an existing
manufactured home park or subdivision shall be elevated so that either:

(1) The lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated no lower than three
(3) feet above the level of the base flood elevation, or one (1) foot above the
future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher; or

(i)  The manufactured home chassis is elevated and supported by reinforced piers
(or other foundation elements of at least an equivalent strength) of no less
than 36 inches in height above grade.

(c) All manufactured homes must be securely anchored to an adequately anchored
foundation system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral movement in accordance
with standards of Section 5.1(7).

Building Standards for Structures and Buildings Authorized Adjacent to the Future-
Conditions Floodplain

For purposes of this ordinance, the term “adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain: 1) all
buildings and structures on a property that contains (partially or entirely) an Area of Special
Flood Hazard; and 2) all buildings and structures on property that share a common property
line within another parcel that contains an Area of Special Flood Hazard. Building and
structures adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain shall meet the following:

(1)

Residential Buildings and Non-Residential Buildings — For new construction or substantial
improvement of construction any-prineipal residential buildingor manufactured-home, the
elevation of the lowest floor, including basement and access to the building, shall be at least
three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above the future-conditions flood
elevation, whichever is higher.





Page 24
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

)

Elevation Certificate or Flood-Proofing Certificate for non-residential construction
including the lowest floor elevation or flood-proofing level and submitted immediately
upon completion of floodproofing or survey work. The Elevation Certificate shall be
prepared by or under the direct supervision of a registered land surveyor or
professional engineer and certified by the same. When flood-proofing is utilized for
non-residential structures, said certification shall be prepared by or under the direct
supervision of a professional engineer or architect and certified by the same.

(a)

(b)

Buildings and structures authorized adjacent to the future-conditions floodplain
may be exempt from the requirements of this section if the following conditions
apply:

(i) The building(s) or structure(s) is not within the same sub-basin as the
Area of Special Flood Hazard and the drainage divide between the Area
of Special Flood Hazard and the building or structure of concern is at
least three (3) feet above the base flood elevation or one (1) foot above
the future-conditions flood elevation, whichever is higher; or

(ii) The Area of Special Flood Hazard is a man-made hazard associated with
a storm sewer system (e.g., a yard drain) and the grading within the sub-
basin provides unconstrained, positive drainage away from the building
or structure at a minimum slope of 2 percent.

The Fayette County Engineering Department shall determine if either of these
conditions are applicable to a building or structure. Alternatively, the
owner/developed may provide a letter justifying applicability of the exemptions.
The letter shall be prepared by a registered professional engineer and shall be
reviewed and approved by the Engineering Department in order for the
exemption to be valid. In either case, the owner/applicant shall be solely
responsible for providing any as-built elevation data necessary to determine
applicability of the exemptions. The elevation data shall be prepared by or
under the direct supervision of a registered land surveyor or professional
engineer and certified by the same.





Page 25
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

5.4. Building Standards for Residential Single-Lot Developments on Streams without
Established Base Flood Elevations and/or Floodway (A-Zones)

For a residential single-lot development not part of a subdivision that has Areas of Special Flood
Hazard, where streams exist but no base flood data have been provided (A-Zones), the
tadministrator) Fayette County Engineering Department shall review and reasonably utilize any
available scientific or historic flood elevation data, base flood elevation and floodway data, or future-
conditions flood elevation data available from a Federal, State, local or other source, in order to
administer the provisions and standards of this ordinance.

If data are not available from any of these sources, the following provisions shall apply:

(1) No encroachments, including structures or fill material, shall be located within an area equal
to twice the width of the stream or fifty (50) feet from the top of the bank of the stream,
whichever 1s greater.

(2) In special flood hazard areas without base flood or future-conditions flood elevation data,
new construction and substantial improvements of existing structures shall have the lowest
floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement) elevated no less than three (3) feet
above the ground immediately around the building and positive drainage must be
provided at a minimum two (2) percent slope away from the building. the-highest
adjacent—erade—at the—building—site. Openings sufficient to facilitate the unimpeded

movements of floodwaters shall be provided in accordance with Section 5.1(5).
5.5. Building Standards for Areas of Shallow Flooding (AO-Zones)

Areas of Special Flood Hazard may include designated "AQO" shallow flooding areas. These areas
have base flood depths of one (1) to three (3) feet above ground, with no clearly defined channel. In
these areas the following provisions apply:

) All substantial improvements of residential and non-residential structures shall have the
lowest floor, including basement, elevated to no lower than one (1) foot above the flood
depth number in feet specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), above the highest
adjacent grade. If no flood depth number is specified, the lowest floor, including basement,
shall be elevated at least three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade. Openings sufficient
to facilitate the unimpeded movements of flood waters shall be provided in accordance with
standards of Section 5.1(5).





Page 26
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

&

(2) Drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwater around and away from any
proposed structure.

5.6. Standards for Subdivisions

(D All subdivision proposals shall identify the Areas of Special Flood Hazards Hazards
speecial-Hlood-hazardarea and provide base flood elevation data and future-conditions flood
elevation data;

(2) All residential lots in a subdivision proposal shall have sufficient buildable area outside of
the future-conditions floodplain such that encroachments into the future-conditions
floodplain for residential structures will not be required;

(3) All subdivision plans will provide the elevations of proposed structures in accordance with
Section 3.2.

4 All subdivision proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage;

(5) All subdivision proposals shall have public utilities and facilities such as water, sanitary
sewer, gas, and electrical systems located and constructed to minimize or eliminate
infiltration of flood waters, and discharges from the systems into flood waters; and,

(6) All subdivision proposals shall include adequate drainage and stormwater management
facilities per the requirements of Gurisdietion) Fayette County to reduce potential exposure
to flood hazards.

Section 6. Variance Procedures

The following variance and appeals procedures shall apply to an applicant who has been denied a
permit for a development activity or to an owner or developer who has not applied for a permit
because it is clear that the proposed development activity would be inconsistent with the provisions





Page 27
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

of'this ordinance. A request for a variance may be submitted by an applicant who has been denied a

permit by the Qoecal-permittingautherty) Fayette County Engineering Department, or by an
owner or developer who has not previously applied for a permit for the reasons stated herein above.

(1

(2

(3)

“

(5)

(6)

(7

Requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance shall be submitted to the
Hoeal-permittingauthority) Fayette County Engineering Department. All such requests
shall be heard and decided in accordance with procedures to be published in writing by the

Hocal-permittingauthority) Fayette County Engineering Department. At a minimum,
such procedures shall include notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard.

Any person adversely affected by any decision of the (appeinted-board) Fayette County
Engineering Department shall have the right to appeal such decision to the (eppropriate
eourtr-Fayette County Planning Commission as established by Gurisdietion)Fayette
County in accordance with procedures to be published in writing by the (appeinted-board)
Fayette County Planning Commission. At a minimum, such procedures shall include
notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard.

Any person aggrieved by the decision of the {appeinted-board) Fayette County Planning
Commission may appeal such decision to the(appropriatecourt) Fayette County State
Court, as provided in Section 5-4-1 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated.

Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of Historic structures upon a
determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's
continued designation as a Historic structure, and the variance issued shall be the minimum
necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.

Variances may be issued for development necessary for the conduct of a functionally
dependent use, provided the criteria of this Section are met, no reasonable alternative exists,
and the development is protected by methods that minimize flood damage during the base
flood and create no additional threats to public safety.

Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood levels
during the base flood discharge would result.

In reviewing such requests, the doeal-permittingauthority) Fayette County Engineering
and (appeinted-board) Fayette County Planning Commission shall consider all technical
evaluations, relevant factors, and all standards specified in this and other sections of this
ordinance.





Page 28
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

(8)

9)

(10)

Conditions for Variances:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

A variance shall be issued only when there-is-all of the following conditions are
met:

(1) a finding of good and sufficient cause;

(ii) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional
hardship; and,

(ii)  a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased
flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public
expense, or the creation of a nuisance.

The provisions of this ordinance are minimum standards for flood loss reduction;
therefore, any deviation from the standards must be weighed carefully. Variances
shall only be issued upon determination that the variance is the minimum necessary,
considering the flood hazard, to afford relief; and, in the instance of a Historic
structure, a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary so as not to
destroy the historic character and design of the building.

Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice specifying the
difference between the base flood elevation and the elevation of the proposed lowest
floor and stating that the cost of flood insurance will be commensurate with the
increased risk to life and property resulting from the reduced lowest floor elevation.

The (administrater) Fayette County Engineering Department shall maintain the
records of all appeal actions and report any variances to the Federal Emergency
Management Agency upon request.

Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request until the time the
request 1s acted upon, submit such information and documentation as the Qocal-permitting
autherity) Fayette County Engineering Department and (appeinted-board) Fayette

County Planning Commission shall deem necessary to the consideration of the request.

Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this ordinance, the Qeeal
permitting—autherity Fayette County Engineering Department and the (appeinted
beard)Fayette County Planning Commission may attach such conditions to the granting of
variances as they deem necessary or appropriate, consistent with the purposes of this
ordinance.





Page 29
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

(11)  Variances shall not be issued “after the fact.”
Section 7. Violations, Enforcement and Penalties

Any action or inaction which violates the provisions of this ordinance or the requirements of an
approved stormwater management plan or permit may be subject to the enforcement actions outlined
in this Section. Any such action or inaction which is continuous with respect to time is deemed to
be a public nuisance and may be abated by injunctive or other equitable relief. The imposition of any
of the penalties described below shall not prevent such equitable relief. The imposition of any of the
penalties described below shall not prevent such equitable relief.

7.1. Notice of Violation

[f the Fayette County Engineering Department determines that an applicant or other responsible
person has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of a permit, an approved stormwater
management plan or the provisions of this ordinance, it shall issue a written notice of violation to
such applicant or other responsible person. Where a person is engaged in activity covered by this
ordinance without having first secured a permit therefore, the notice of violation shall be served on
the owner or the responsible person in charge of the activity being conducted on the site.

The notice of violation shall contain:

(1)  The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible person;

(2)  The address or other description of the site upon which the violation is occurring;

(3) A statement specifying the nature of the violation;

(4) A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or inaction into
compliance with the permit, the stormwater management plan or this ordinance and the date

for the completion of such remedial action;

(5) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the person to whom the
notice of violation is directed; and,

(6) A statement that the determination of violation may be appealed to the (loeal-permitting
authority) Fayette County Engineering Department by filing a written notice of appeal
within thirty (30) days after the notice of violation (except, that in the event the violation
constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be
sufficient).





Page 30
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

7.2.  Penalties

In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been completed by
the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or more of the following
actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to whom the notice of violation was
directed. Before taking any of the following actions or imposing any of the following penalties, the
Heealpermittingauthority) Fayette County Engineering Department shall first notify the applicant
or other responsible person in writing of its intended action, and shall provide a reasonable
opportunity, of not less than ten (10) days (except, that in the event the violation constitutes an
immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be sufficient) to cure such
violation. In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to cure such violation after such
notice and cure period, the Qoeal-permitting-authority) Fayette County Engineering Department
may take any one or more of the following actions or impose any one or more of the following
penalties.

(1 Stop Work Order -The (lecal-permitting—autherity Fayette County Engineering

Department may issue a stop work order which shall be served on the applicant or other
responsible person. The stop work order shall remain in effect until the applicant or other
responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has
otherwise cured the violation or violations described therein, provided the stop work order
may be withdrawn or modified to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the
necessary remedial measures to cure such violation or violations.

(2) Withhold Certificate of Occupancy - The Joeal- permittingautherity) Fayette County
Building Department may refuse to issue a certificate of occupancy for the building or other

improvements constructed or being constructed on the site until the applicant or other
responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has
otherwise cured the violations described therein.

(3) Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit - The Joecal-permittingauthority)
Fayette County Engineering Department may suspend, revoke or modify the permit
authorizing the development project. A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be
reinstated after the applicant or other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set
forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations described therein,
provided such permit may be reinstated (upon such conditions as the {eeal-permitting
authority) Fayette County Engineering Department may deem necessary) to enable the
applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures to cure such
violations.





Page 31
August 7,2008
P.C. Public Hearing

4

(5)

Ordinance adopted on

By:

Civil Penalties - [n the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to take the
remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to cure the violations
described therein within ten (10) days, or such greater period as the Fayette County
Engineering Department shall deem appropriate (except, that in the event the violation
constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24 hours notice shall be
sufficient) after the Fayette County Engineering Department has taken one or more of the
actions described above, they may impose a penalty not to exceed $1,000 (depending on the
severity of the violation) for each day the violation remains-unremedied is not remediated
after receipt of the notice of violation.

Criminal Penalties - For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, the eeal
permittingautherity) Fayette County Engineering Department may issue a citation to
the applicant or other responsible person, requiring such person to appear in (apprepriate
munieipalmagistrate-orrecorders) Fayette County State Court to answer charges for such
violation. Upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 or
imprisonment for 60 days or both. Each act of violation and each day upon which any
violation shall occur shall constitute a separate offense.

Certified by:

Date:

With no public present, Chairman Powell closed the floor from public comments.

Chairman Powell asked if the Flood Insurance Study maps would be available on-line.

Mr. Mallon replied that there were available through the FEMA website; however, the Engineering
Department’s website would provide the link information.

Bill Beckwith asked if Section 3.4. (9) should be amended to include the specific office.





Page 32
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

Mr. Mallon replied that there are several offices involved so he would rather leave the section to state
Fayette County and not a specific department.

The P.C. concurred with Mr. Mallon.

Mr. Beckwith asked where Section 5.2. (3) (a) originated from.

Mr. Mallon replied that this section came from the FEMA Model Ordinance.

Mr. Beckwith asked why the Planning Commission would be hearing the variance request instead of
the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Chairman Powell explained that the variance is related to development activity and the P.C.
currently approve or deny variances regarding street length.

Mr. Beckwith asked if the P.C. would be rendering the final decision.
Mr. Mallon replied that if the applicant may appeal the P.C.’s decision in State Court.

Tim Thoms asked if a variance request regarding a single-family residence would also be heard by
the P.C.

Mr. Mallon replied that the P.C. would hear a variance request for a single-family residence.
The P.C. concurred with the variance section as proposed.

Mr. Thoms asked if Section 4.1. (3) should be amended to include a Registered Landscape
Architect.

Mr. Mallon replied that he had followed the ARC’s language which does not include a Registered
Landscape Architect.

Mr. Thoms noted that this was being discussed at the State level. He submitted a copy of the State
law and pointed out that the proposed amendment contradicts the State law. He requested that a
copy of the State law (O.C.G.A.) be forwarded to the B.O.C.

Mr. Mallon pointed out that delineating areas of Special Flood Hazard is very detailed and should be
prepared by someone who specializes in the field and who does it routinely.





Page 33
August 7, 2008
P.C. Public Hearing

Al Gilbert stated that if the ARC decides to include a Registered Landscape Architect that the
County’s ordinance could be amended.

Al Gilbert made a motion to approve the proposed amendments with the two (2) changes presented
by Mr. Mallon. He thanked Mr. Mallon and Mrs. Birrell for their hard work because this was a hard
task.

Bill Beckwith seconded the motion.

The motion unanimously passed 4-0. Jim Graw was absent.
* k ok ok Kk K k k¥ ¥k

Chairman Powell asked if there was any further business.

Robyn Wilson advised the P.C. that the Public Meeting/Workshop scheduled for Thursday, August
21, 2008, may be cancelled; however, she would notify them by the Friday, August 15, 2008.

There being no further business, Bill Beckwith made the motion to adjourn the Public Hearing. Al
Gilbert seconded the motion. The motion for adjournment unanimously passed 4-0. Jim Graw was
absent. The Public Hearing adjourned at 7:28 P.M.

PLANNING COMMISSION

OF
FAYETTE COUNTY

ATTEST:

DOUG POWELL
CHAIRMAN

ROBYN S. WILSON
SECRETARY





CHAPTER 23. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS
0.C.G.A. § 43-23-1 (2008)

§ 43-23-1. Definitions

As used in this chapter the term:
(1) "Board" means the Georgia Board of Landscape Architects.

(2) "Landscape architect" means a person who is licensed pursuant to this chapter
to practice or teach landscape architecture.

(3) "Landscape architecture" means the performance of professional services,
including, but not limited to, consultation, investigation, planning, design,
preparation of drawings and specifications, and responsible supervision, all in
connection with the preservation or determination of proper land uses, natural land
features, esthetics, planting plans, the shaping of land to produce the best functional
and esthetic effect, and grading plans with determination of drainage. This term shall
also include the consideration of environmental problems involving land areas, as
such problems relate to the public health, safety, and welfare.

TITLE 43. PROFESSIONS AND BUSINESSES
CHAPTER 23. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

0.C.G.A. § 43-23-16 (2008)

§ 43-23-16. Applicability of chapter to qualified registered architects and
professional engineers

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed as excluding a qualified registered
architect or professional engineer from such landscape architectural practice as may
be incidental to the practice of his profession or as excluding a landscape architect
registered under this chapter from such architectural or engineering practice as may
be incidental to the practice of landscape architecture.





		EngineeringFloodplainManagementAgendaRequestFile

		EngineeringFloodplainManagementBackup








Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Finance Department Head: ’Mary S. Holland

Presenter, if needed: ’Toni Jo Howard Preferred Meeting Date: ’Thursday, August 28, 2008

Wording for the Agenda:
Discussion of Vehicle Replacement Committee's recommendations for replacement of 19 vehicles included in the Fiscal Year 2009
budget.

Background/History/Details:

The Vehicle Replacement Committee held its first quarterly meeting for the Fiscal Year on August 7, 2009. At that time, the
Committee considered replacement of vehicles for Building and Grounds Maintenance (1), EMS (3), Fire Services (1), the Marshal's
Office (3), Sheriff's Field Operations (4), Sheriff's Technical Services (1), Constable (1) Road Department (2), and the Water System (3).
All vehicles had been included in the Fiscal Year 2009 budget. All were inspected by Fleet Maintenance, and were reported to meet
replacement criteria, as established in the county's vehicle replacement policy.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval to replace the 3 Water System vehicles using Water System enterprise funds, and replace the other 16 vehicles using
vehicle replacement funds.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? [No If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

(e Finance Review Complete (e Purchasing Review Complete
(e Legal Review Complete (e Administrative Staff Review Complete
Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date [Thursday, August 28, 2008
Recognition/ Public Old New

Presentation Hearing C Business (& Business C Consent C Report ( Other





UWene Quality 7o 4 ..a’f:;-,’cd tyle

To: Toni Jo Howard

From: Ted L. Burgess

Date: August 12, 2008

Subject: Vehicle Replacement Committee

In compliance with the county’s current policy and procedures, the Vehicle Replacement Committee
met on August 7, 2008. A total of 19 vehicles were considered for replacement at the meeting.
Attached, please find the agenda which lists the vehicles by department, and the Committee’s
recommendation for each.

As stipulated in the policy and procedures, all 19 vehicles were inspected by Fleet Maintenance prior
to the meeting. It was reported that all met criteria for retirement from their current use, although at
least one may potentially be used for less-demanding work. After discussions with representatives
from each of the impacted departments, and deliberations among Committee members, it was
decided to recommend replacement of the 19 vehicles.

Mailing Address: 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone: 770-460-5730 Web Site: www.fayettecountyga.gov





		Finance 19 Vehicle ReplacmentsAgendaRequestFile

		Finance 19 Vehicle Replacments Backup 1

		Finance 19 Vehicle Replacments Backup 2








Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Finance Department Head: ’Mary S. Holland

Presenter, if needed: ’Toni Jo Howard Preferred Meeting Date: ’Thursday, August 28, 2008

Wording for the Agenda:
Approval of staff's recommendation to accept the proposal from WRS as the lowest bidder for actuarial and consulting services for
the valuation of OPEB as required by GASB 45.

Background/History/Details:

Other post employment benefits (OPEB) includes postemployment healthcare, as well as other forms of postemployment benefits
(for example life insurance) provided separately from a pension plan. GASB 45 requires that these benefits be measured and
recognized over a period that approximates employees' years of service and provide information about actuarial accrued liabilities
associated with OPEB and whether and to what extent progress is being made in funding the plan.

An actuarial firm must be obtained to determine the actuarial accrued liability associated with these benefits and determine the
necessary level of funding.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval to accept the proposal from WRS as the lowest bidder for actuarial and consulting services for the valuation of OPEB as
required by GASB 45.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? [No If so, when?

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal? Yes
Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes
Staff Notes
Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date [Thursday, August 28, 2008
Recognition/ Public Old Ne
. C oo (@ Consent ( Report ( Other

Presentation Hearing Business Business





GEORGIA

Whene Quality To A4 Lifestyle

To: Jack Krakeel

From: Tim J ones/,/d

Date: August 4, 2008

Subject: Actuarial and Consulting Services

Sealed proposals were requested for the subject item. A proposal tally sheet is attached
for your review.

In Mary Holland’s attached recommendation, the low bidder was recommended, WRS,
Inc., was recommended at $6,500.00. I concur with Mary’s recommendation.

[f this recommendation meets your approval, please place this item on the next available
consent agenda, If any additional information is needed, please let me know.

Tl/ich
Attachments

cc: Mary Holland

Mailing Address: 140 Stonewall Avenue West Main Phone: 770-305-5420 Web Site: www.fayettecounty ga.gov





		FinanceOPEB ProposalAgendaRequestFile

		FinanceOPEB ProposalBackup








Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Finance Department Department Head: ’Carol Chandler

Presenter, if needed: ’Jack Krakeel, if needed Preferred Meeting Date: ’August 28,2008

Wording for the Agenda:
Approval of Resolution No. 2008-12 establishing millage rates and levying ad valorem taxes for 2008.

Background/History/Details:

The public hearing for the proposed millage rates for 2008 was held on August 14 by the Board of Commissioners. Due to the Board
of Education needing additional time during which to hold more public hearings for their desired increase in their millage rates, the
Board of Commissioners was not able to adopt the annual resolution which sets millage rates for the County and for educational
purposes and levies ad valorem taxes so approval of the resolution was scheduled for August 28.

It is the intention of the Tax Commissioner to mail our tax bills by September 15 with a due date of November 15 for annual tax bill
payments.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Adopt Resolution No. 2008-12.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when? |August 14, 2008

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal? Yes
Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes
Staff Notes
Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date [Thursday, August 28, 2008
Recognition/ Public old New
Presentation Hearing Business C Business (@ Consent ( Report ( Other





State of Georgia;
- County of Fayette

RESOLUTION LEVYING COUNTY TAX

|
i

FOR YEAR 2008
No. 2008 - 12

Upon motion duly made and unanimously passed, it is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners

| of Fayette County, Georgia, duly convened this 14th day of August, 2008, that upon $2,246,528,674, the value of
| all property taxable for County purposes in Fayette County, Georgia, as appears upon the digest thereof, and
' upon all other taxable property in unincorporated Fayette County, Georgia, there be levied and collected for
! County purposes as set forth in the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 48-5-220, and as hereinafter
.. amended and as otherwise authorized by law, a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2008, at the aggregated rate for all
| ' such purposes of $7.391 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation, constituting a total tax levy for purposes in
- unincorporated Fayette County of 7.391 mills.

Upon motion duly made and unanimously passed, it is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners

" of Fayette County, Georgia, duly convened this 14th day of August, 2008, that upon $3,184,571,805, the value of
' all property taxable for County purposes in Fayette County, Georgia, as appears upon the digest thereof, and
| upon all other taxable property in incorporated Fayette County, Georgia, there be levied and collected for County
. purposes, as set forth in the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 48-5-220, as hereinafter amended and
| as otherwise authorized by law, ad valorem, for the year 2008, at the aggregated rate for all such purposes to be
' levied as follows:

 ' 1. All property located within the City of Peachtree City will be assessed at $5.400 per $1000.00 of

assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in Peachtree City of 5.400 mills;

2. All property located within the City of Fayetteville will be assessed at $5.400 per $1,000.00 of assessed

valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in Fayetteville of 5.400 mils;

: 3. All property located within the Town of Tyrone will be assessed at $7.391 per $1,000.00 of assessed

valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in the Town of Tyrone of 7.391 mills;

‘ 4, All property located within the Town of Brooks will be assessed at $7.391 per $1,000.00 of assessed

valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in the Town of Brooks of $7.391;

: 5. All property located within the Town of Woolsey will be assessed at $7.391 per $1,000.00 of assessed

valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in Town of Woolsey of 7.391 mills.

A millage rate of 1.991 mills shall be levied in all incorporated and unincorporated areas of Fayette
County for fire protection services. The cities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City will receive millage rollbacks as a

: result of the combination of government services. Such rollbacks are as follows: the City of Fayetteville shall

receive a 1.991 mill rollback and; the City of Peachtree City shall receive a 1.991 mill rollback.

In accordance with provisions within Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 6 of the Constitution of the State of
Georgia and O.C.G.A. § 36-70-24(3), Fayette County has created a special tax district for the purpose of
providing Emergency Medical Services to its citizens, said special tax district encompassing all of Fayette County
with exception of that portion of Fayette County which constitutes the City of Peachtree City. Upon

: - $3,578,595,020, the value of all property taxable within the Special EMS Tax District, as appears upon the digest
| thereof, there shall be levied and collected a tax of $.548 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation.





| (Seal)

In consideration of combined applicable rollbacks and the applicable Special EMS Tax District levy, the

total ad valorem taxes levied and assessed are as follows: 7.939 mills for the unincorporated County; 5.948 mills
| for the City of Fayetteville; 5.400 for the City of Peachtree City; 7.939 mills for the Town of Brooks: 7.939 for the
| Town of Tyrone; and 7.939 for the Town of Woolsey.

Upon recommendation of the Fayette County Board of Education, it is ordered that upon

$5,032,777,050, the value of all property taxable for educational purposes in Fayette County as appears upon the
| digest thereof, and upon all other property in Fayette County, both real and personal, there be levied a tax, ad

valorem, for the year 2008, for educational purposes in the amount of $19.750 per $1,000.00 of the assessed

f ' valuation on the digest as aforesaid, constituting a total tax levy for educational purposes of 19.750 mills.

It is further ordered that upon $5,077,571,050, the value of all taxable property in said County as

appears upon the digest thereof, computed by deducting only the special homestead exemption for certain

persons 65 years of age and over, and upon all other taxable property in said County, both real and personal,

| there be levied and collected a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2008, for the purpose of providing a sinking fund for

retiring bonded indebtedness and discharging interest thereof, of the Fayette County School District, in the
amount of $4.170 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation, constituting a total tax levy of 4.170 mils.

It is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, this 28th day of August,
2008, that all taxes, as described and as levied by the adoption of this Resolution, shall be due and collected by
the Tax Commissioner of Fayette County, by the close of the business day on November 15, 2008.

So resolved this, the 28th day of August, 2008, by the

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA

Herbert E. Frady, Vice Chairman

i Attest:

Clerk/Deputy Clerk





PROPOSED

Net M&O Millage Rates

2008 vs 2007
Change
Resolution Actual Increase / (Decrease)
Description 2008 2007 Over Last Year
PTC
M&O 5.400 5.432 (0.032)
Fayetteville
M&O 5.400 5.432
EMS 0.548 0.550 (0.034)
5.948 5.982
Brooks/Tyrone
M&O 5.400 5.432
EMS 0.548 0.550 (0.043)
Fire 1.991 2.000
7.939 7.982
Unincorporated County
M&O 5.400 5.432
EMS 0.548 0.550 (0.043)
Fire 1.991 2.000
7.939 7.982






		FinanceResolution2008-12MillageAgendaRequestFile

		FinanceResolution2008-12MillageBackup




Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Human Resources Department Head: ’Connie Boehnke

Presenter, if needed: ’Same, if needed Preferred Meeting Date: ’August 28,2008

Wording for the Agenda:
Approval of staff's recommendation to amend the County's Cafeteria Benefit Plan to include the County's Flexible Spending
Account and to authorize the Chairman to execute the related documents.

Background/History/Details:

The County's current Cafeteria Plan encompasses pre-tax benefits for County employees and is regulated under Section 125 of the
Internal Revenue code of 1986, as amended. Since a Flexible Spending Account was added to this compliment of available benefits
for employees on April 10, (effective June 1, 2008), in order to be in compliance, the the Board needs to amends its agreement with
Ceridian (Cafeteria Plan with Flexible Spending Arrangement) to include the Flexible Spending Account. The Chairman needs to
execute the amended document as well as Resolution 2008-07 prepared by the County attorney.

THIS IS NOT A CHANGE IN THE FLEXIBLE SPENDING BENEFIT.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of request as presented and authorization for the Chairman to execute related documents.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when? |April 10,2008

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal?

Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes

“ =<
]
wv

Approved by Purchasing? Yes

Staff Notes
Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date [Thursday, August 28, 2008
Recognition/ Public
N Old New (@ Consent ( Report ( Other

Presentation Hearing Business G Business





		HumanResourcesSection125CafeteriaPlanAgendaRequestFile

		HumanResourcesSection125CafeteriaPlanBackup








Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Sheriff's Office Department Head: ’Sheriff Randall Johnson

Presenter, if needed: ’Captain Michelle Walker, if needed Preferred Meeting Date: HThursday, August 28, 2008

Wording for the Agenda:
Authorization to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigation Division to
recognize funds paid to the County as reimbursement for personnel assigned to assist federal officers in investigating certain illegal

activities.

Background/History/Details:

For several years Fayette County has participated with federal agencies in the investigation of drug activities and other illegal
activities as a part of programs designed to allow local law enforcement agencies to assist federal officers. Among other benefits,
these programs reimburse local agencies for overtime of their officers as needed.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the Overtime budget account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office
Criminal Investigation Division || by 5521942 which has been received from various federal programs. This
would revise the Overtime Regular Budgeting Account to $141,303.25.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

No funding is required for this request.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when? |When funds are received

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |No

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal? Yes
Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes
Staff Notes
Administrator's Approval HYes Confirmed Meeting Date [Thursday, August 28, 2008
Recognition/ Public old New
Presentation Hearing Business C Business (@ Consent ( Report ( Other










Print Form

COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST

Department/Division: ’Sheriff's Department- Jail Department Head: ’Major Robert Glaze

Presenter, if needed: ’Lt. Steve Coker Preferred Meeting Date: ’Thursday, August 28, 2008

Wording for the Agenda:
Approval to allow the Sheriff's Department Jail Division to dispose of items of clothing and bedding from the Jail which are no
longer serviceable.

Background/History/Details:

Approximately once a year, Lt. Steve Coker from the Jail requests permission to dispose of old inmate clothing and bedding that is
no longer of use to them. These items are normally incinerated.

In order to destroy items belonging to Fayette County, the Board of Commissioners must declare them to be of no further use to the
County.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Permission to allow the Sheriff's Department to dispose of old articles of clothing and bedding no longer serviceable.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Not Applicable.

Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? |Yes If so, when? |Annually

Do you need audio-visual for the presentation? |No Back-up Material Submitted? |ves

STAFF USE ONLY

Approved by Finance? Yes Reviewed by Legal? Yes

Approved by Purchasing? Yes Approved by Administrative Staff?|Yes

Staff Notes

Administrator's Approval |Yes Confirmed Meeting Date [Thursday, August 28, 2008
Recognition/ Public Old New

Presentation Hearing Business C Business (@ Consent ( Report ( Other





		Sheriff- Clothing Disposal Agenda RequestFile

		Sheriff- Clothing Disposal Backup







